
 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
April 28, 2014 

6:45 P.M. – Executive Session 
7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Executive Session: for a personnel matter [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A)] 
 
Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Roll Call  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Correspondence:   
 
Council Committee Updates  
 
Acknowledgment that meeting was properly noticed 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
(a) Financial Update  
(b) Report from the McKeen Center for the Common Good  
(c) Announcement of Brunswick Spring Clean Up 
(d) Report on proposed raised crosswalk on Pleasant Street 
(e) Review of budget workshop and meeting schedule 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
47. The Town Council will hold a public hearing on the following alcohol license 

applications, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
 

Full-Time Spirituous, Vinous & Malt 
Labonte Acquisition Company   Lynn Labonte 
D/B/A: The Great Impasta (new owner) 
42 Maine Street 
 
Full-Time Vinous & Malt     
Broadway Delicatessen, Inc.    Nancy Bigelow 
D/B/A:  Broadway Deli 
142 Maine Street 

HEARING/ACTION 

1 
 



 
48. The Town Council will hear public comments on a CDBG grant application for 

Greater Brunswick Housing Corporation, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
49. The Town Council will hear a report on a location permit to install a proposed 

electrical line along public ways for SolarCity to serve Bowdoin College, and will take 
any appropriate action. (Manager) 

ACTION 
 
50. The Town Council will consider supporting a Letter of Intent for a CDBG grant for 

Frosty’s Donuts for a project at Brunswick Landing, and will take any appropriate 
action.  (Manager) 

ACTION 
 
51. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and Committees, 

and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 
ACTION 

 
52.  (ADDED) The Town Council will hear consider setting the Charter required public 

hearing for May 15, 2014, on the proposed Municipal Budget for 2014-2015 and 
Capital Improvement Plan for 2015-2019, and will take any appropriate action.  
(Manager) 

ACTION 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of March 31, 2014 
b) Approval of the Minutes of April 7, 2014 
c) Approval of nominations of election workers for 2014-15 
d) Appointment of Jeff Emerson as the Health Officer with a term to expire on 

04/19/2017 
e) Appointment of Dan Devereaux as the Harbor Master with a term to expire on 

04/30/2017 
f) Appointment of Jeff Hutchinson as Codes Officer and Local Plumbing Inspector with 

a term to expire on 05/03/2015  
g) Appointment of Carl Adams as alternate Codes Officer and alternate Local Plumbing 

Inspector with a term to expire on 05/03/2015 
h) Approval of gas utility permits from Maine Natural Gas for sections of Beech Drive, 

Chestnut Road and Sumac Drive 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  

THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 
 
  

2 
 



Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

April 28, 2014 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
Executive Session: for a personnel matter [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A)] 
 
Suggested Motion 
Motion to go into executive session to discuss a personnel matter per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A). 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE UPDATES  
 
Councilors with information on the Committees they are involved with will share information 
with the Council and public. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
(a) Financial Update:  Mr. Eldridge will update the Council on the Town’s financial 

picture to date for the current fiscal year.  Copies of financial reports will be posted 
online, but are not included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 

(b) Report from the McKeen Center for the Common Good:  Sarah Seames, who leads the 
center, along with a Bowdoin student, will provide a brief overview of the good work 
this center does for the community.  A copy of the webpage for the center is included 
in your packet.  

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
(c) Announcement of Brunswick Spring Clean Up:  This item informs the public of the 

upcoming spring clean-up that is currently running through May 3rd.  More 
information on what is included is on the Public Works website.  A copy of the 
program flyer is included in your packet.  

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
(d) Report on proposed raised crosswalk on Pleasant Street:  Mr. Eldridge will report on 

this item and confirm what direction the Council would like to proceed with this 
proposed project. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
(e) Review of budget workshop and meeting schedule:  Mr. Eldridge will remind 

Councilors of upcoming dates.  Please note that workshops will begin at 6:00 p.m.  
There is also a workshop prior to the regular meeting on May 5th regarding the Town 
Manager’s search, and meeting with MMA to discuss the hiring process.  

 

3 
 



Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
47. This item is the required public hearing on these two new licenses for The Great 

Impasta, under new ownership, and the Broadway Deli.  Copies of the public hearing 
notice and applications are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to approve alcohol licenses for the Great Impasta, 42 Maine Street, and 
Broadway Deli, 142 Maine Street. 

 
48. This is the required public hearing on this CDBG grant application for the Greater 

Brunswick Housing Corporation.  They are requesting the Town submit a request to 
the DECD for a $450,000 Housing Assistance grant.  They are currently planning to 
acquire a six-unit apartment house located at 27 Spring Street. Additional information 
on the property and the project are included in Linda Smith’s memo. Copies of a 
memo from Ms. Smith, the Letter of Intent the Town submitted to DECD, the letter of 
invitation the Town received from DECD, and the resolution from the GBHC for the 
Town Council to approve will be included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to adopt the “Brunswick Town Council Resolution” that supports applying for 
a Community Development Block Grant in the amount of $450,000, on behalf of 
Greater Brunswick Housing Corporation, to carry out a housing assistance program. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
49. This item is to inform the Council and public about an upcoming public hearing, 

which will be held at the Town Council meeting of May 5.  After the hearing, the 
Council will consider approving this utility permit.  This location permit allows 
SolarCity to install an underground electrical line to service Bowdoin College.  In 
addition to this discussion at your meeting, Bowdoin College also sent notices to 
abutters where the electrical line will be run from Brunswick Landing to College 
owned buildings.  The line is being proposed to be installed in the right-of-way down 
Hambleton Avenue, along Harpswell Road to Farley Field House.  The College, 
SolarCity and the Town Attorney have been working on this project.   A copy of a 
memo from the Town Attorney detailing this project will be included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
No motion is required, just confirmation the Council recognizes this public hearing 
will occur on May 5th. 

 
50. This item is a request from Frosty’s Donuts for the Council to submit a letter of intent 

for a CDBG grant in amount of $160,050 to provide funding to support their 
production expansion to 119 Orion Street at Brunswick Landing. With the growth of 
this business since being purchased by new owners in 2012, this project would 
develop a production space for them so they can continue to expand their business.  

4 
 



Copies of a memo from Linda Smith, draft Letter of Intent, and Town of Topsham’s 
withdrawal letter, since they originally put in a Letter of Intent when a Topsham 
location was being considered, will be included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to support a Letter of Intent for a CDBG grant in amount of $160,050 for 
Frosty’s Donuts for a project at Brunswick Landing 

 
51. At this time the Appointments Committee will make nominations to fill vacancies on 

Town Boards and Committees.  Normally these nominations are made the first 
meeting of the month, but since there are no additional interviews scheduled until mid-
May, the Appointments Committee would like to make appointments at this meeting.  
They are also recommending amending the charge of the River and Coastal Waters 
Committee to allow for two alternate citizen members.  Copies of the applications are 
included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Nominations will be made, with no seconds required, and the Council will then vote 
on the nominations.   

 
52.  (ADDED) This item is to set the Charter required public hearing for May 15, 2014, on 

the proposed Municipal Budget for 2014-2015 and CIP for 2015-19.  Since the 
advertisement has to be in the newspaper prior to the May 5th meeting, the Council 
needs to set the public hearing at this meeting.  This will also eliminate the need for a 
special meeting for Thursday, which will become a workshop, beginning at 6:00 p.m.  
The advertisement will be in Friday, May 2nd paper, so the budget will be available to 
the public at the time the advertisement appears, even though it will not be at the date 
you set the hearing. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to set the required public hearing for May 15, 2014, on the proposed 
Municipal Budget for 2014-2015 and CIP for 2015-19. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of March 31, 2014: A copy of the minutes is included in your 
packet. 

b) Approval of the Minutes of April 7, 2014:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 
packet. 

c) Approval of nominations of election workers for 2014-15:  The Council is required to 
appoint election workers who have been nominated by the municipal parties on a 
biannual basis.  The lists contain the names of the current workers and have been 
approved by the local chairs.  Lists of the workers are included in your packet.   

d) Appointment of Jeff Emerson as the Health Officer with a term to expire on 
04/19/2017:  This is the three-year appointment for this position.  

e) Appointment of Dan Devereaux as the Harbor Master with a term to expire on 
04/30/2017:  This is the three-year appointment for this position. 

f) Appointment of Jeff Hutchinson as Codes Officer and Local Plumbing Inspector with 
a term to expire on 05/03/2015  

5 
 



g) Appointment of Carl Adams as alternate Codes Officer and alternate Local Plumbing 
Inspector with a term to expire on 05/03/2015 

 
Items CA(f) and CA(g) are the state required reappointments of Jeff Hutchinson and 
Carl Adams as the Codes Officer and Local Plumbing Inspector and the alternate 
Codes Officer and alternative Local Plumbing Inspector respectively. 

 
h) Approval of gas utility permits from Maine Natural Gas for sections of Beech Drive, 

Chestnut Road and Sumac Drive:  See below 
In application ULP 2014-02, Beech Drive   Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to 
install a 2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on south side of 
Blueberry Lane, a short section of gas main will run northerly along the centerline of 
Beech Drive to the center of the cul-de-sac located at the northerly terminus of Beech 
Drive. The balance of the gas main will run from the south side of Blueberry Lane 
along the east and south side of Beech Drive to a point about 150 feet east of Hemlock 
Drive the gas main will then cross Beech Drive and run westerly along the northerly 
side of Beech Drive to Hemlock Road. Approximately 3300 feet of 2” gas main.   
 
In application ULP 2014-03, Chestnut Road   Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization 
to install a 2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the east and south 
side of Beech Drive. The new gas main will run from the proposed gas main north 
across Beech Drive along the easterly side of Chestnut Road to the northerly terminus 
of Chestnut Road. Another section of gas main will run from the south side of Beech 
Drive along the west side of Chestnut Road to the north side of Sumac Drive 
approximately 1330 feet of 2” gas main.  
 
In application ULP 2014-04, Sumac Drive   Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to 
install a 2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the south side of 
Beech Drive.  One section of gas main will run northerly along the east side of Sumac 
Drive to the terminus of Sumac Drive.  Another section of  new gas main will run 
from the proposed gas main along the west and north side of Sumac Drive to the east 
side of Locust Lane approximately 1370 feet of 2” gas main. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 

6 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
IN COUNCIL PACKETS 
BUT ON LINE 
 
 



 
 
 

04/01/2014 09:44    |Town of Brunswick |PG     1
jhenze              |MARCH 2014 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2014 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

10 Taxes                              
_________________________________________

 
111190 41101  Property Taxes   35,022,679  35,022,679  34,953,934.69       2,680.54                     68,744.31   99.8%*
111190 41103  Deferred Property Tax     -200,000    -200,000            .00            .00                   -200,000.00     .0% 
111190 41104  Tax Abatements      -75,000     -75,000    -125,617.48     -26,656.78                     50,617.48  167.5% 
111190 41105  Interest on Taxes       75,000      75,000      41,690.88       3,223.52                     33,309.12   55.6%*
111190 41106  Tax Lien Costs Revenu       14,000      14,000      13,668.00          42.00                        332.00   97.6%*
111190 41107  Tax Lien Interest Rev            0           0      12,899.15            .00                    -12,899.15  100.0%*
111190 41109  Payment in Lieu of Ta      235,000     235,000     137,184.76            .00                     97,815.24   58.4%*
111190 41197  BETE reimbursement      185,780     185,780     147,378.00            .00                     38,402.00   79.3%*
111190 41198  Homestead exemption r      411,673     411,673     312,820.00            .00                     98,853.00   76.0%*
111190 41199  Miscellaneous tax adj        3,320       3,320            .00            .00                      3,320.00     .0%*
111191 41110  Excise Tax - Auto    2,700,000   2,700,000   2,067,589.57     238,042.02                    632,410.43   76.6%*
111191 41111  Excise Tax Boat/ATV/S       24,000      24,000       5,767.50       1,354.60                     18,232.50   24.0%*
111191 41112  Excise Tax - Airplane            0           0       4,029.30    -129,402.00                     -4,029.30  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Taxes                        38,396,452  38,396,452  37,571,344.37      89,283.90                    825,107.63   97.9%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   38,396,452  38,396,452  37,571,344.37      89,283.90                    825,107.63

 
20 Licenses & Fees                    
_________________________________________

 
121111 42207  Passport Fees        8,000       8,000       6,875.00         775.00                      1,125.00   85.9%*
121111 42208  Postage Fees            0           0          59.80            .00                        -59.80  100.0%*
121111 42209  Passport Picture Reve        1,500       1,500       2,088.00         276.00                       -588.00  139.2%*
121411 42100  Building Permits      110,000     110,000     119,844.10      27,635.38                     -9,844.10  108.9%*
121411 42101  Electrical Permits       31,000      31,000      20,634.77         951.20                     10,365.23   66.6%*
121411 42102  Plumbing Permits       13,500      13,500      16,413.33       1,382.50                     -2,913.33  121.6%*
121611 42200  Hunting & Fishing Lic        1,350       1,350         720.00          31.70                        630.00   53.3%*
121611 42201  Dog License Fee        2,302       2,302       2,568.00         108.00                       -266.00  111.6%*
121611 42202  Vital Statistics       42,000      42,000      38,123.80       3,652.00                      3,876.20   90.8%*
121611 42203  General Licenses       24,500      24,500      15,515.00       1,270.00                      8,985.00   63.3%*
121611 42204  Victulars/Innkeepers       21,650      21,650       1,000.00            .00                     20,650.00    4.6%*
121611 42205  Shellfish Licenses       20,700      20,700         275.00            .00                     20,425.00    1.3%*
121611 42206  Neutered/Spayed Dog L        4,210       4,210       4,688.00         184.00                       -478.00  111.4%*
121611 42208  Postage Fees            0           0         185.15            .00                       -185.15  100.0%*
121911 42300  Planning Board Appl F       20,000      20,000       8,675.60       1,512.00                     11,324.40   43.4%*
122121 42400  Fire Permits          700         700         390.00          40.00                        310.00   55.7%*
122221 42500  Conc Weapons Permits          600         600         885.00          80.00                       -285.00  147.5%*
123131 42600  Public Works Opening          500         500          80.00            .00                        420.00   16.0%*

 
TOTAL Licenses & Fees                 302,512     302,512     239,020.55      37,897.78                     63,491.45   79.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      302,512     302,512     239,020.55      37,897.78                     63,491.45

 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DEHcRqUOlYiBFB5lfRE8B1%2Ba22w5lqU4fZANVLO6EksVWKy/u9Rf5j52AUD4PN7J&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=f3jm9yQrmXcmBT62gRU7MDflXeOgF077xY47vUcn8wcRs8OyTi5qMzyLDzRt5pi0&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=AlnVW/1XwUX9UvUug/hSCz47P2FoMSQZ7oPdZu2c0Au9d2Kqxjc1gOlKXrrrfd%2BR&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2Eyf8E5fPj32/L5U19PmPIPAA4J%2B4tgTA3RAAcL3ufch4BZRE/PA3LE1Ds/bwJkP&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XxglySs6BqdJ2ARS5KShHe%2BHPlDtm/yCRUNcl4V1HGPmk%2BuRcUcbIwy1SRuJEze2&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=r23p702ZoeT0GsUPof%2Bkn3fOuy9vI%2BENPLL186qkx5IxBeERcZFUpkd5TX9iTeZe&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GzT76eFMHz5YJisAeCWgx62cKnnhHkF8UHxgbyEPhYEimA/8UHEgXsp/z9ITOgNZ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=bvfADhI9YLee6g5BNRd0oQtTxp/%2BHp5eOYXcCeX0n%2Bn0ydHVuCxzNJPukLsY1mkC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pbSLD1fiZ5Dr9hIuPgC19khpq972YzR2xCpGrHJsdMyoXLfdHzPFk0fi5g8lXDpN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=95jrRhW%2B1cD1iTlnCRDAnIKdGLVRKGAQQZ/lbivPUwSM5dEcND37sIqq6h%2BYSyHR&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Fan3UUJoZRWLXOsBz1pXKdL6bDTdHfzwsdHbrFZ9Fzfe6se7pcOtZUxLvmxRRk0G&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=iafanRHVBOprNt5gwSn537nvoWGMwMewwI5aFwVAQmZlZ%2BjFS1DHKFQvdnmsLApe&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HNO4vh3xVm%2Bgs6h4/2ELk3iNx5VfHKNWanephcmwqDHrWuCJF5%2BKaZ2x4U5irHU4&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=//7pgbBnQR5GaCZVHTrbeRxELV5hCyNvu3uzc28dXaWb8blhut9rk0UfhC0%2BKGOg&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=gYahJrUyARIzrQq4jmpzkJpj7osVEpndfS2FGWLnkwYgeifsvM1Fv9Hi14PtmBug&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=D8%2BdH4aEYnvI6Ab2JUtkQqV0Wd6H486awxdURkbg6qv0MZRXO72T2QQzbM8EUYlr&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2B%2BpEldb0nV%2BH5REtsyL4abE3OO0jegYSB/P3fSRV2%2BGCsaUnuT/bRO3c53jQk2KI&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=bP9XnEekBahnD266ysh4RuMwBt6WiIi67twQfFOrMiFxLbhhPfcNLtun67D98iho&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Sj4fOTiyJllodOMGY6QxTEYoPgqr2DeRcG6paxRXcXdGulu9SQHVjJkAkobe/0dQ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xeOi%2Bl2scLjKhu4FNzlPc1DaQW14yIor2xdRhDxHaLJAWPosCYf5yUVJ%2B4rJW/Kz&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=/tMa2Fs9qNG9SSI9C1A6ybkx5qnIcVftu6Qwy1mDoQBlLSTe8RqXcAsGYcpwcBDu&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=d/F5jfNAXiEY6UxmIASF0ceqzTmffmu8XtJ6YPMF4WIAFl65rVTnBb494e0mlpzz&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ysowfR28LhB2eOu9%2BTaUwjKvQMA5qmIZksTmpQMIqaWzphIPrzdOuAJzyq3F3UNb&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=LtTb6O6Hq/ttm3WQ8BWJivg6eXi3HDxw7OFAni5U39icUgardj2lEMKxRSguNxcO&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=3IMmoIYqUS7VDZiFnEmfLJ1PaVAaOl2VmCa0CnT2URt7ZqHPF1mWrVRxMuFhP/zo&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NBWXb5Mipji1KguDgRp976JcEmAN76LlNp1xdbNYZmXYwPanmidT4%2Bdnf04mxVfX&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=bPtbizg8CHN5KNndXTYirga33Xag/DBZHCn7gCWPBDkBrX4RmXfdS5LAjOIYZJ7G&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ks2%2BUcUUw8osAH20he0f1THY95nWKDRV05EWwP9mpyxXNQqhbrF17Sn6M2w1Lq%2BT&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Q%2BAj8w8tGAwDrZvUVx6UsLNo%2B%2Bzdx0G0aBSG96gndfAVyGtqCKp8sKI55D0QeMDL&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CwV3RpVe6jWuVJD%2BeWrted2xNjbqpPE04SvF9HkCHDd1c9QWHGBZgsFabjoZCbEy&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=B8CTModqcNNJgm5W/JU%2BpKHt4/Lon%2Bb9uILN4Rd1JhykSM1JfPpgszMLzaXLlhq5&


 
 
 

04/01/2014 09:44    |Town of Brunswick |PG     2
jhenze              |MARCH 2014 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2014 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

30 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
131122 43505  FD EMPG grant       15,000      15,000      12,011.36            .00                      2,988.64   80.1%*
131122 43506  FD SAFER grant       20,000      20,000       3,255.00            .00                     16,745.00   16.3%*
131132 43103  Highway Grant Fund      208,000     208,000     214,392.00            .00                     -6,392.00  103.1%*
131142 43104  State General Assista       27,000      27,000       8,618.89            .00                     18,381.11   31.9%*
131190 43102  State Tax Exemption R       26,000      26,000       8,241.45            .00                     17,758.55   31.7%*
131192 43101  State Revenue Sharing    1,059,000   1,059,000     753,073.42      24,403.69                    305,926.58   71.1%*
131192 43106  Snowmobile Receipts        1,264       1,264       1,588.80            .00                       -324.80  125.7%*
134546 43120  State Education Subsi   10,840,108  10,840,108   8,416,809.47     728,580.56                  2,423,298.53   77.6%*
134546 43121  State Adult Educ. Sub       31,000      31,000            .00            .00                     31,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental            12,227,372  12,227,372   9,417,990.39     752,984.25                  2,809,381.61   77.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   12,227,372  12,227,372   9,417,990.39     752,984.25                  2,809,381.61

 
40 Charges for services               
_________________________________________

 
141111 44110  Agent Fee Auto Reg       50,000      50,000      37,167.00       4,253.00                     12,833.00   74.3%*
141111 44111  Agent Fee Boat/ATV/Sn        1,500       1,500         705.00          73.00                        795.00   47.0%*
141211 44121  Rental of Property            0           0         300.00            .00                       -300.00  100.0%*
141611 44131  Advertising Fees            0           0         882.55            .00                       -882.55  100.0%*
142121 44155  Ambulance Service Fee      875,000     875,000     706,642.51      36,207.97                    168,357.49   80.8%*
142121 44166  Special Detail - Fire        1,000       1,000       2,405.04            .00                     -1,405.04  240.5%*
142221 44161  Witness Fees        3,000       3,000       3,324.00            .00                       -324.00  110.8%*
142221 44162  Police Reports        3,600       3,600       2,265.50         186.50                      1,334.50   62.9%*
142221 44163  School Resource Offic       80,000      80,000      80,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0%*
142221 44165  Special Detail - Poli        1,000       1,000      16,313.50         162.00                    -15,313.50 1631.4%*
142221 44167  Dispatch Services fee      139,268     139,268     106,909.77      10,831.79                     32,358.23   76.8%*
143431 44175  Recycling Revenue       25,000      25,000      15,261.80       1,792.10                      9,738.20   61.0%*
144545 44100  School Tuition, etc      166,411     166,411      99,193.28         250.00                     67,217.72   59.6%*

 
TOTAL Charges for services          1,345,779   1,345,779   1,071,369.95      53,756.36                    274,409.05   79.6%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,345,779   1,345,779   1,071,369.95      53,756.36                    274,409.05

 
50 Fines & Penalties                  
_________________________________________

 
151621 45103  Unlicensed Dog Fines        5,000       5,000       5,475.00       1,550.00                       -475.00  109.5%*
152121 45104  False Alarm Fire        2,000       2,000       2,450.00            .00                       -450.00  122.5%*

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=vsfuj7/X85PQFBvkwAyLKJ/WVCYjx7ouF2A7rlP7W1YZa//c9ygZsXJS8zoMoqTk&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=sV/ZXQY88t7%2BtiIIK77OELkyTN7R%2B/ROwi3VE61vAw66%2B7CCcQDmMvvzIbbYM38Q&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mdIxl1SeC6aVuf1ETFnwIN0g7f7SiD6SqQylrnih6HXetOwqv0qyB2ruqBA32zpK&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HlER4m3bWjJvIu1c0MFRfBamoppprAwnj8NRKOgvpvSN2y/P9pVhSKwoELeCzy57&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GD4HlgZBqp4eGuw%2BKxM%2BY61j/Ko0f3S3VzNV/RxHJDlKvbNsu0j1zC1zzqT4oHt7&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=sSOdz%2BbwqQXnEdD/iAcCGwK1nUEIBkXWZ9wrfn%2Brb2FeDZvo/Grmd/9iu8WIDiI6&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=aNvbzfQ94v5efFljzJ6SY1dAJvYXOvYb%2BIaAIWEqKDiiETg50FM4Grpq0%2BnbxJ03&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Pl0kaqZgW1iJ5i8cmuL/HQrSTwSnlTQRCK8RHBlvoBDorDMGdVUp4%2B5pCsXq3LjI&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PIRrg49Km7jCthGtg0n18oci1o3tuixAuoDBw%2B39GZdvFizYhMqRU/xF1c5frAn6&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=fg3Xc%2BhkoUlwlGQT3UkcgVez4a/HP7bEJZsbW/41xtfUhl4zoD6L93yZbdfVT2Yy&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=O9meV868xyVUIGIqNNRZLI5Xejz5mVdfmJm87xUeWCZl0nWWFyUm5kVw6TFCfKvU&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0DtyOTj0SajzynuKAeqL3Gur/NWHbbBa0fnwodfx6oKL%2B7iw3pn25u1cyNtXG30w&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=6OWXVBcNrDcN/ER0mV2kRJ2RAgXMv2uggiYjZX8p4ZAqozexp5QpItP2b/yzzbvC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=BiVcnkN2DD33PtvazJy5eZsktoJ2w30Tx9WkkaWb6QRbz%2BDjJixRmbCjes8uZ8Yi&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OvUSbwtmm6RCe8MaTO16rWtSkQDmqdISeYFRXorikw0rz/JwhaOny6Ke39osBR0T&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BQe%2BYFMRCFaVGqXUq4BqL9fR4UmHlrLrfvqU5E%2Be8wkCpfSyDY9qUNK%2BajAWtGVv&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kMpcIqnnALUpu2Ix7vx2KoKCQl3FrX9b1coQjpr40uBQq/w6Xb8poUPbGv8JXZxK&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=V1N2cVC1uZb8ZOGxj3yXzDpKwZdEXH2GZovWoBAqkE8r7S3CSt%2B%2BMsxF3m9L/1oN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QrbsyOicpiRE5QCTBwZ4rFAD%2BT9EuEJMhyquehh4IPkhb6il16O7JtPlfwRKqfap&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IYOttY6Ela3iYefkVqhkE077P8nmWh122XWQ9FaUiM5bGx983esrWM7VK0uruPiU&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=uCYFjR9XVhF2jkvIkI7E1bOf7wtt9hx4U5GDAz5vKb5Uoaky87CFVoVD1/ChlSQw&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GWqyoGparkUAr44Xqta9epbxkwXqIVZlFaDx/YUfNYTZV8GZw72m4UiVm/q61pIt&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=s0%2BTraLhoDIzcD2LsOK46AjKmtrIJw1X2mV9sLSaj2deBrP1SV9YoUU8BNW802Mz&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PWf2H1qxXeEjOz5A86JQPD%2BlO9NND3NFZWxN9WuEdJIDAL%2BlS59ZIi7TbR1OP8s7&


 
 
 

04/01/2014 09:44    |Town of Brunswick |PG     3
jhenze              |MARCH 2014 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2014 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
152121 45107  Fire Code Violation F            0           0         300.00            .00                       -300.00  100.0%*
152221 45100  Ordinance Fines          600         600         842.00         130.00                       -242.00  140.3%*
152221 45101  Parking Tickets       20,000      20,000      18,274.00       2,340.00                      1,726.00   91.4%*
152221 45102  Leash Law Fines          600         600         175.00            .00                        425.00   29.2%*
152221 45105  False Alarm Police          300         300          15.00           5.00                        285.00    5.0%*
152221 45106  Restitution            0           0       1,006.38          25.57                     -1,006.38  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Fines & Penalties                28,500      28,500      28,537.38       4,050.57                        -37.38  100.1%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       28,500      28,500      28,537.38       4,050.57                        -37.38

 
60 Interest earned                    
_________________________________________

 
161193 46100  Interest Earned       50,000      50,000       9,941.78       1,104.14                     40,058.22   19.9%*

 
TOTAL Interest earned                  50,000      50,000       9,941.78       1,104.14                     40,058.22   19.9%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       50,000      50,000       9,941.78       1,104.14                     40,058.22

 
70 Donations                          
_________________________________________

 
171952 47000  BDC Contrib to Econ D       75,000      75,000      75,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0%*
171952 47001  MRRA - Eco Dev positi       25,000      25,000      12,499.98       2,083.33                     12,500.02   50.0%*
171952 47002  MRRA - MCOG DUES       15,000      15,000      15,000.00      15,000.00                           .00  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Donations                       115,000     115,000     102,499.98      17,083.33                     12,500.02   89.1%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      115,000     115,000     102,499.98      17,083.33                     12,500.02

 
80 Use of fund balance                
_________________________________________

 
181100 48000  Unapprop General Fund    1,000,000   2,415,000            .00            .00                  2,415,000.00     .0%*
181100 48001  Bal of State Revenue       20,000      20,000            .00            .00                     20,000.00     .0%*
184500 48004  School Balance Forwar    2,800,000   2,800,000            .00            .00                  2,800,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Use of fund balance           3,820,000   5,235,000            .00            .00                  5,235,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    3,820,000   5,235,000            .00            .00                  5,235,000.00

 
90 Other                              
_________________________________________

 
191011 49000  Administration Miscel            0           0         260.26            .00                       -260.26  100.0%*

 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=lIVzE7jTKKAuYLNoLYN5TChKx2fSV48vdmFIdR/580skeCeM33LmUtmbxQ2hLppc&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=llYYBFUQho8wj0wPtisjZrJpI0vEPfGqY0uHpLLQGmc0lKu9j9o%2BFQgwMnK3FVtc&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Qd6Sv5n0BPVzFWT31mS5F1Pm7O9HtRwol1AfZASWQTsamtXOqbDiSfKIObXJAQIt&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=LELspvl/5qkGiEBGYiS79sT4UXWZDav/oVsmVP/a9LY0p9ncrW3EAf5csV421L0a&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CkFabHiCF6byvPTRLtPO0/8EyOcXEnV2WKB09wd0j/bp5jIoPOU0dkxZ1ftb0GXJ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=LUuGlthFIi9lwlUKZiUOqNlrFJeQROE6E9IQYDDaD65og3PXQ31C1iVzw6HjyzGs&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=w/FvHiFyl%2BPWiNdKqNyvVOL84ECqLOcTxyQAi6k4unUWqWdqg89DplABxcTRclEs&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=8bA7RDTBO%2BgiJ%2BNjCa6JKq/LKUahyN66gIgJTfOETxGTje5441lYGxsiwr7SwZMc&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0GRnYyUuM1hPZbimHpfk/n/e6wcVl%2Bs3I5p%2BckRofDYNcElPQa%2BFGMV8r13D/JN%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=/gJx0wPgInBh2Yld84riqAzWVkfjyVrcxKN46lCcKj5RuUiP20Agx1rFMbNls4o4&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=3X/Ied9SD4uNZcYPHCoHG0AagCVleujjwetozMK0rGJgkDIaARQdpZeFn4bjbOXx&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=FV8GW3Wh1qOoz0YKhs0pTj0JFJ8i2TYTOVIGTMeLg7mz62ApBzcKy/5MYZlgvdJw&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=MMc0HV5TtC8I7ECrp57v17hASdPuZrcuiU%2ByZqPB0/KfqaHPKKS2OX2gYPQmwOag&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=i1QwCaUmWuNC47WL1628vrcuQeCWa4fwcOHnLTSrgAAn7cRugZm0GzdDVLcdBenV&


 
 
 

04/01/2014 09:44    |Town of Brunswick |PG     4
jhenze              |MARCH 2014 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2014 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
191111 49000  Finance Miscellaneous        1,000       1,000       5,115.71         205.00                     -4,115.71  511.6%*
191111 49104  Property & Casualty D            0           0       9,283.00            .00                     -9,283.00  100.0%*
191111 49105  Postage & Handling            0           0       2,177.00         308.00                     -2,177.00  100.0%*
191111 49106  W/C Proceeds            0           0       8,327.20            .00                     -8,327.20  100.0%*
191111 49210  Insurance Proceeds            0           0       9,665.13            .00                     -9,665.13  100.0%*
191192 49100  Cable Television      210,000     210,000     115,920.24            .00                     94,079.76   55.2%*
191194 49150  Gen Govt Asset Sales      290,066     290,066          90.00            .00                    289,976.00     .0%*
191411 49000  Codes Miscellaneous            0           0          10.25            .00                        -10.25  100.0%*
191611 49000  Town Clerk Miscellane        1,200       1,200       1,104.50         188.50                         95.50   92.0%*
191911 49000  Planning Miscellaneou          150         150         144.85           7.75                          5.15   96.6%*
192121 49000  Fire Miscellaneous            0           0         774.73           5.00                       -774.73  100.0%*
192194 49151  Fire Vehicle Sales            0           0       1,500.00            .00                     -1,500.00  100.0%*
192221 49000  Police Miscellaneous       10,000      10,000      61,242.93         710.22                    -51,242.93  612.4%*
192294 49153  Police Vehicle Sales       13,500      13,500            .00            .00                     13,500.00     .0%*
193131 49000  Public Works Miscella            0           0          24.74          20.00                        -24.74  100.0%*
193194 49154  Public Works Vehicle            0           0       4,000.00            .00                     -4,000.00  100.0%*
194545 49000  School Miscellaneous      120,000     120,000      90,877.87      11,759.03                     29,122.13   75.7%*
195051 49000  Recreation Miscellane            0           0         517.80            .00                       -517.80  100.0%*
199980 48100  General Fund Transfer      675,000     675,000     296,150.96      21,150.96                    378,849.04   43.9%*

 
TOTAL Other                         1,320,916   1,320,916     607,187.17      34,354.46                    713,728.83   46.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,320,916   1,320,916     607,187.17      34,354.46                    713,728.83

 
GRAND TOTAL   57,606,531  59,021,531  49,047,891.57     990,514.79                  9,973,639.43   83.1%

 
                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=KvRhlZH8F4j1mYjxv85EUk8aCo7eS3O8F1Sp8ub61PcnA5GvCDZbXnXsN25q/fsj&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PKrgu%2BSul6qerAbokrjbLlVnDPR5OFsRxg5ZOdJaGgJFsnKfz3GGafNoehPdaZQi&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5WIirkxj5zs39LHuqAZDPprFjqJ8TpW29x4PGdIxhfNkzKKxW4Ij7kZior6vrM5H&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=8CTuIqwGVVm4cgZWxztmxcneUgcBk5CYMYUlZQG2QKoGh6Ub17g1pqsLZngcA5qv&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=AJWb12xwGfl5JVtsC%2BnPQSkDNw2sI349vKz6tnjSDnE3E03DNPurW4d6VoHuVkp4&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=phq3k/q2clG%2BZ589NJHjBZE4PwCohv4TxWowvJj1jr64r9abWl07Wrb1JCINK88X&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nYviEEiPjYatjnm06c%2BnOlJBYNHlvwXu/P5wb7Wg6nj103MmH8p/gtSbfYGYWl34&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=KEeJiqR%2BB9Ti68sGMui%2BdTkNRqruy%2BPix1V9YPhDOkSa3msUL6EBjRNI1d/pBDlY&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Kpsq8WHyZfLAKDjIprrYyVuET%2BuLMoYmavZHZymf89B50SqtqBEsZW34pAEGrVtK&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CbR5aqW/b0a0hTM7s0s5nyHzvMx/7N3XzG0UDgxfu%2BytifkXmWoxtV42y8wglbZj&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1ThjibnktMqh5MOCos30hyB6dyFKhQPIEor71msFrQWM61VgVMK5pJGIPeP07I8S&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PjXW1jaFwswWSD1sO9Q0%2B3MLQZFvnBEiGP1maTMZUWupm6iCoPZY0T18E7RxwSsp&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Z5TVA8SRNb0NcWabWhLgz0hdKVw7mSdqTRgJSooQ/FCKSgyyEIkJiA6nIK6REPo8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=idvisAbHKXjpxebmQGN/dU4hRvA5hxc8AzoTuJUmigg3FKpHhZotiOi2DXTDxzbS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NpOxKcgRJmud4cI72FBxjfUaY8yWHUUPe2guOEwWBQzsmvOuXbLdetESb9McTicO&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=a%2BSkG%2B69NDLd1uIf2bMlohe0QrbMd8cJirIUQCFEkVQX1Hi2jSNPHF%2BUp3WaEa2O&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ix3ViLedT88vrXIY0zRiCbIetxMdCXH/VFGsqosHgp7FLFdnSqWnegVrN5mz86m7&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=j1tLUdNYDfvvjk6cbamTWP83oa/YuzIz7U%2BdqvgQzwzjOe1zMMJQN1eHpYZqAQ9J&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1dAHH2B7YE28QQROc29pkErLmtSnzzeKOHmaPdr1kUEvaJXJFX4WIyQUI9f3jBtM&


 
 
 

04/01/2014 09:45    |Town of Brunswick |PG     1
jhenze              |MARCH 2014 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2014 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

00 Fill                               
_________________________________________

 
19000 General Fund Transfers Out    1,435,975   2,856,475   2,856,475.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Fill                          1,435,975   2,856,475   2,856,475.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

10 General Government                 
_________________________________________

 
11000 Administration      487,927     487,927     436,037.79      37,672.45          68.00      51,821.21   89.4%
11100 Finance Department      680,948     680,948     488,680.12      48,612.07         150.00     192,117.88   71.8%
11150 Technology Services Dept      328,531     328,531     283,556.27      17,287.40      14,615.00      30,359.73   90.8%
11200 Municipal Officers      126,615     126,615      68,648.06       1,745.30            .00      57,966.94   54.2%
11210 Munic Bldg - 85 Union            0           0      16,634.47       8,833.12         397.96     -17,032.43  100.0%
11220 Munic Bldg - 28 Federal      166,850     166,850     104,040.48      10,049.57         601.00      62,208.52   62.7%
11230 Risk Management      414,750     414,750     351,065.44       7,204.29            .00      63,684.56   84.6%
11240 Employee benefits            0           0    -106,539.11      -5,569.73            .00     106,539.11  100.0%
11250 Cable TV       37,360      37,360      26,535.63       3,236.54            .00      10,824.37   71.0%
11300 Assessing      297,218     303,368     188,899.78      19,043.37       4,207.71     110,260.51   63.7%
11600 Town Clerk & Elections      356,478     356,478     241,449.84      27,808.94         230.00     114,798.16   67.8%
11900 Planning Department      541,059     546,959     349,194.10      39,119.50      59,276.01     138,488.89   74.7%
11950 Economic Development Dept      104,564     104,564      57,734.95       7,214.22            .00      46,829.05   55.2%

 
TOTAL General Government            3,542,300   3,554,350   2,505,937.82     222,257.04      79,545.68     968,866.50   72.7%

 
 

20 Public Safety                      
_________________________________________

 
12100 Fire Department    2,985,969   3,010,869   2,142,892.49     218,112.31      15,031.38     852,945.13   71.7%
12150 Central Fire Station       41,054      41,054      29,724.22       4,127.51         467.96      10,861.82   73.5%
12160 Emerson Fire Station       50,350      50,350      23,329.61       1,881.82         342.72      26,677.67   47.0%
12200 Police Department    3,684,953   3,691,862   2,540,746.61     271,923.95            .00   1,151,115.24   68.8%
12210 Police Special Detail            0           0      14,314.05         453.63            .00     -14,314.05  100.0%
12220 Emergency Services Dispatch      721,909     721,909     520,474.03      51,510.76       1,400.00     200,034.97   72.3%
12250 Police Station Building       68,730      68,730      45,630.55       7,450.08            .00      23,099.45   66.4%
12310 Streetlights      205,000     205,000     141,775.44      15,789.40            .00      63,224.56   69.2%
12320 Traffic Signals       31,600      31,600      21,591.78       1,723.77            .00      10,008.22   68.3%
12330 Hydrants      429,178     429,178     206,654.85            .00            .00     222,523.15   48.2%
12340 Civil Emergency Preparedness        2,000       2,000         800.00            .00            .00       1,200.00   40.0%

 
TOTAL Public Safety                 8,220,743   8,252,552   5,687,933.63     572,973.23      17,242.06   2,547,376.16   69.1%

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

04/01/2014 09:45    |Town of Brunswick |PG     2
jhenze              |MARCH 2014 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2014 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
30       Public Works                       APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

30 Public Works                       
_________________________________________

 
13100 Public Works Administration      414,090     414,090     292,130.95      33,717.59         375.00     121,584.05   70.6%
13110 PW General Maintenance    1,629,304   1,629,304   1,155,594.81     208,940.76      65,632.60     408,076.59   75.0%
13130 Refuse Collection      573,143     573,143     392,053.96      45,768.53     116,047.56      65,041.48   88.7%
13140 Recycling      289,743     289,743     196,579.56      23,253.59     111,014.28     -17,850.84  106.2%
13150 PW Central Garage      781,964     781,964     579,952.44      96,595.77      69,261.06     132,750.50   83.0%

 
TOTAL Public Works                  3,688,244   3,688,244   2,616,311.72     408,276.24     362,330.50     709,601.78   80.8%

 
 

40 Human Services                     
_________________________________________

 
14100 General Assistance      170,106     170,106     118,772.99      11,574.38       2,113.72      49,219.29   71.1%
14120 Health & Social Services        2,744       2,744       1,387.36            .00            .00       1,356.64   50.6%

 
TOTAL Human Services                  172,850     172,850     120,160.35      11,574.38       2,113.72      50,575.93   70.7%

 
 

45 Education                          
_________________________________________

 
14500 School Department   35,570,775  35,570,775  22,102,375.63   2,238,861.36            .00  13,468,399.37   62.1%

 
TOTAL Education                    35,570,775  35,570,775  22,102,375.63   2,238,861.36            .00  13,468,399.37   62.1%

 
 

50 Recreation and Culture             
_________________________________________

 
15000 Recreation Administration      435,014     435,014     304,348.24      36,583.86            .00     130,665.76   70.0%
15050 Rec Buildings and Grounds      657,996     662,107     405,102.62      41,459.10       9,380.38     247,624.00   62.6%
15150 Rec Federal St Building       15,840      15,840      13,460.60         660.54            .00       2,379.40   85.0%
15250 Rec Building 211      122,151     122,151      59,285.15       5,275.86       2,314.50      60,551.35   50.4%
15300 Teen Center       10,000      10,000      10,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
15310 People Plus      105,000     105,000     104,630.15            .00            .00         369.85   99.6%
15400 Curtis Memorial Library    1,215,000   1,219,900     926,249.77            .00            .00     293,650.23   75.9%

 
TOTAL Recreation and Culture        2,561,001   2,570,012   1,823,076.53      83,979.36      11,694.88     735,240.59   71.4%

 
 

60 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
 
 



 
 
 

04/01/2014 09:45    |Town of Brunswick |PG     3
jhenze              |MARCH 2014 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2014 09
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
60       Intergovernmental                  APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
16000 County tax    1,249,487   1,249,487   1,249,487.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental             1,249,487   1,249,487   1,249,487.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

70 Unclassified                       
_________________________________________

 
17000 Promotion and Development      160,258     154,758     129,122.18          11.48         247.28      25,388.54   83.6%
17010 Additional School Assistance       10,000      10,000            .00            .00            .00      10,000.00     .0%
17020 Cemetery Care        3,000       3,000       1,250.00            .00            .00       1,750.00   41.7%
17030 Wage Adjustment Account       68,000      68,000            .00            .00            .00      68,000.00     .0%
17052 School Master Plan            0      14,527            .00            .00      14,526.97            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Unclassified                    241,258     250,285     130,372.18          11.48      14,774.25     105,138.54   58.0%

 
 

80 Debt Service                       
_________________________________________

 
18010 2003 High School Refunding Bo            0           0           -.50            .00            .00            .50  100.0%
18020 2006 CIP G/O Bonds      260,000     260,000     232,000.00            .00            .00      28,000.00   89.2%
18030 2011 GO CIP Bonds      269,450     269,450     238,150.00            .00            .00      31,300.00   88.4%
18040 Police Station Bond      394,448     394,448     321,224.43            .00            .00      73,223.57   81.4%
18050 2010 Elementary School Bond            0           0    -231,224.17            .00            .00     231,224.17  100.0%

 
TOTAL Debt Service                    923,898     923,898     560,149.76            .00            .00     363,748.24   60.6%

 
 

GRAND TOTAL   57,606,531  59,088,928  39,652,279.62   3,537,933.09     487,701.09  18,948,947.11   67.9%
 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Mission

Joseph McKeen Biography

Text of 1802 Inaugural 
Address

The Common Good in 
Bowdoin History

News Archives

At the opening of the College in 1802, President Joseph McKeen declared that:

"…literary institutions are founded and endowed for the common good, and not for the private advantage of 
those who resort to them for education. It is not that they may be enabled to pass through life in an easy or 
reputable manner, but that their mental powers may be cultivated and improved for the benefit of society. If 
it be true, that no man should live to himself, we may safely assert, that every man who has been aided by a 
public institution to acquire an education, and to qualify himself for usefulness, is under peculiar obligations 
to exert his talents for the public good."

Mission
The Joseph McKeen Center for the Common Good provides opportunities for students to discover the ways 
in which their talents, passions and academic pursuits can be used for the benefit of society through public 
engagement.  By linking diverse activities in order to compound their meaningfulness, the McKeen Center 
serves as a vibrant and central source of information, events and activities related to public engagement for 
faculty and staff as well as students, and connects departments, programs and individuals with similar 
interests to enhance both learning and impact in the community.

The McKeen Center offers students opportunities to explore themes of community responsibility, active 
citizenship and informed leadership through service and community engagement at the local, national and 
international levels.  The Center encourages and assists faculty members in connecting their teaching, 
research and artistic endeavors to issues of the public good. It creates avenues for community partners, 
alumni and staff to educate students by action and example.  In addition, the McKeen Center coordinates 
and supports public events that challenge all members of the Bowdoin community to consider both the 
historical and contemporary meanings of the common good and to debate issues of broad public concern. 
Faculty Fellows appointed to work with the McKeen Center help shape the Center’s educational vision and 
its connection to the academic program, while student leaders of community service programs focus the 
Center’s work on those initiatives that are most current and compelling. 

McKeen Center Goals
• Enhance student learning and leadership skills through reflective public engagement in the curriculum and 
co-curriculum while cultivating lifelong commitments to improving the well-being of society;
• Encourage and support publicly engaged teaching, research and artistic work;
• Promote public engagement throughout the Bowdoin community by fostering discussion of the common 
good in campus-wide events that address issues of broad public concern.

Directory Calendar

learning, serving, leading … for the common good 

Emergency Information | Help Send Feedback | Print Page Connect on Bowdoin Social »

Bowdoin College · Brunswick, Maine · 04011 · 207-725-3000

Joseph McKeen

Center for the Common Good

About Service and Leadership Courses and Research Partners and Partnerships Fellowships and Beyond Contact

Mission

About Admissions Academics Campus Life Visit Arts Athletics

Page 1 of 2Mission (Bowdoin, Center for the Common Good)

4/23/2014http://www.bowdoin.edu/mckeen-center/about/index.shtml



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 





 
 

 
Manager Report – D and E 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 47 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 













 
 

 
ITEM 48 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 

28 FEDERAL STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011-1583 

 
 

 
TELEPHONE      207-721-0292 

FAX                      207-725-6663 

 
 
TO:  Brunswick Town Council Members 
FROM:  Linda Smith, Business Development Manager 
SUBJECT: Greater Brunswick Housing Corporation (GBHC) Request to Brunswick Town Council to 

approve a Community Development Block Grant application 
DATE:  April 23, 2014 
 

The Greater Brunswick Housing Corporation (GBHC) is requesting the Town of Brunswick to submit a 
request to the Department of Economic and Community Development’s (DECD) Office of Community 
Development (OCD) for $450,000 from the Community Development Block Housing Assistance Grant 
program to provide funding for the GBHC’s purchase of existing multi-family residential properties in 
order to make substantial rehabilitation to existing apartments.  

On March 10, 2014, the Town Council approved a Letter of Intent (LOI) to DECD OCD for this purpose. 
On March 18, 2014, DECD OCD invited the Town to apply for these funds. The funds provided for by 
this CDBG grant will allow the GBHC to create affordable units and make improvements so as to furnish 
residents with quality housing at an affordable rent level. 

The GBHC plans to acquire a six-unit apartment house located on 27 Spring St. in Brunswick. The 
property is located at the corner of Spring and Weymouth Street across from the Harriet Beecher Stowe 
Elementary School. The site consists of an apartment building with five units and a garage with a one 
bedroom unit located above it.   

The house has 4 one-bedroom apartments and 1 three-bedroom apartment. The house will require 
substantial renovation and, in doing so, will be reconfigured to hold 2 one-bedroom apartments, 1 two-
bedroom and 1 three-bedroom apartments (a total of 4 in the primary house). The garage will be 
demolished due to a lack of structural integrity, and in its place a two-unit, two-bedroom house will be 
constructed. In total, the number of apartment units will not change.   

Currently, only two units are occupied, therefore, relocation of tenants will be minimal. The GBHC will 
serve low to moderate income households whereby at least 4 of the units will serve households earning 
less than 80% of the area median income which for a household of three is currently $49,250. Historically, 
we have served households with less than 30% of area median income which is $18,450. Further, the 
mission to provide decent affordable housing will be advanced by these grant funds as they will allow the 
redevelopment of existing marginal housing units into newly modernized, energy efficient residential units. 
Historically, households at the lower end of the income scale have few options to rent modern apartments 
and therefore the GBHC’s efforts provide increased opportunities for these households to live in safe, 
decent, affordable housing.   

Staff from the Greater Brunswick Housing Corporation (GBHC) will be available at the April 28, 2014 
Town Council meeting to answer any questions. 

 
Cc:  John Eldridge, Interim Town Manager, Town of Brunswick 
 John Hodge, Executive Director, Brunswick Housing Authority 



BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL RESOLUTION 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick wishes to apply to the Department of Economic and 
Community Development for a Community Development Block Grant to carry out a housing 
assistance program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the planning process required by Maine Law and the CDBG Program have been 
complied with, including participation in the planning process by low and moderate income 
families and individuals and the community has conducted at least one duly advertised public 
hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick is cognizant of the requirement that should the intended 
National Objective of the CDBG program not be met, all CDBG funds must be repaid to the 
State of Maine CDBG program; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Council of the Town of Brunswick that the Town 
Manager: 
 
1) Is authorized and directed to submit an application for the following program(s) and dollar 

amount(s) within the State of Maine’s CDBG Program: 
 
Program: CDBG 2014 Housing Assistance Grant Program   Amount: $450,000 
 
to the Department of Economic and Community Development on behalf of the Town of 
Brunswick, substantially in the form presented to this council; 

 
2) Is authorized to make assurances on behalf of the Town of Brunswick as required as part of 

such applications, and 
 
3) Is authorized and directed, upon acceptance of said funds to carry out the duties and 

responsibilities for implementing and said program(s), consistent with the Charter of the 
Town of Brunswick and the laws and regulations governing planning and implementation of 
community development programs in the State of Maine. 

 
 
DATE ENACTED:  April 28, 2014         Municipal Seal 
 
 











 
 

 
ITEM 49 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

      Stephen E.F. Langsdorf 

 slangsdorf@preti.com 

 Direct Dial: 207.791.3291 

 

M E M O R A N D U M  

TO: John Eldridge, Acting Town Manager 
 

FROM: Stephen E.F. Langsdorf; Kevin J. Haskins 
Town Attorneys 
 

DATE: March 27, 2014 

RE: Location Permit for SolarCity to Install Underground Electrical Line 
Servicing Bowdoin College 
 

  
This memorandum analyzes the Town of Brunswick’s (the “Town”) licensing authority 

to issue a location permit to SolarCity to install an underground electrical line to serve Bowdoin 
College (“Bowdoin”).   
 
I. FACTS 
 

SolarCity is a solar energy service provider and is working with Bowdoin to develop and 
construct two solar arrays on land and buildings owned by the college.  One of the arrays is 
proposed to be located on land acquired by Bowdoin from the former Brunswick Naval Air 
Station.  Power generated from this array is proposed to be transmitted to the Bowdoin campus 
via a half-mile medium-voltage distribution line.  A portion of this electrical line is proposed to 
be located along public ways that are within the urban compact area of the Town.  SolarCity will 
own and operate the electrical line. 
 
II. ANALYSIS 

 
A. SolarCity must obtain a location permit before installing the proposed electrical 

line along public ways 
 

Maine law allows a person other than a transmission and distribution utility to construct 
electric lines along public ways, provided the person obtains a location permit from the 
applicable licensing authority.1  See 35-A M.R.S.A. § 2305-B, §§ 2501-2503, 2507.   
 

Specifically, Maine law provides that a person other than a transmission and distribution 
utility may construct electrical lines along public ways if: 

1  The analysis in this memo would likely be the same if SolarCity were considered to be a “transmission and 
distribution utility,” as such entities are still required to obtain a location permit pursuant to 35-A M.R.S.A. § 2503.  
See 35-A M.R.S.A. §§ 2305-B(1), 2501.  

 
 

6518468.1 

                                                 



 
1. The person satisfies the requirements of 35-A M.R.S.A. § 2503;  

 
2. The person or the person’s contractor provides a performance bond to the applicable 

licensing authority; 
 

3. Prior to constructing the line, the person notifies the transmission and distribution utility 
in whose service territory the line is proposed to be built; and 

 
4. The public utility does not object to the line or, if the public utility does object, the Maine 

PUC issues a finding that the line is not a duplication of existing transmission or 
distribution facilities and does not interfere with the adequate and safe delivery of 
electricity to others. 

 
Id. at § 2305-B(2).  Bowdoin has represented that it has received written confirmation from 
Central Maine Power Co. (“CMP”) that CMP does not object to the proposed installation, 
thereby satisfying conditions 3 and 4.  Assuming SolarCity will comply with condition 2, the 
remaining condition that must be met is condition 1, i.e. satisfying the requirements of 35-A 
M.R.S.A. § 2503. 
 

Section 2503 governs the procedure for obtaining a location permit to construct electrical 
lines and other “facilities” in or along a public way.  Section 2503 applies broadly to “every 
person making, generating, selling, distributing and supplying gas or electricity” and “any other 
person engaged in . . . the transmission of heat or electricity.”  Id. at § 2501(2).  Because 
SolarCity will be generating and transmitting electricity, Section 2503 applies and SolarCity 
must obtain a location permit from the applicable licensing authority before constructing 
electrical lines or any similar facilities along public ways.  Id. (providing that “a person may not 
construct facilities upon and along highways and public roads without applying for and obtaining 
a written location permit from the applicable licensing authority under section 2503”). 

 
B. The Town of Brunswick would be the applicable licensing authority for 

SolarCity’s application for a location permit 
 

Maine law provides that municipal officers or their designees are the applicable licensing 
authority when the public way is a “city street or town way or a state or state-aid highway in the 
compact areas of urban compact municipalities.”  Id. at § 2502(1)(B).  The Maine Department of 
Transportation (“Maine DOT”) is the applicable licensing authority when an application for a 
location permit involves a state or state-aid highway outside the compact areas of urban compact 
municipalities.  Id. at § 2502(1)(A). 

 
Here, Bowdoin has indicated that the proposed electrical line will run along streets and 

state highways that are within the urban compact area of the Town of Brunswick.  The Town of 
Brunswick would therefore be the applicable licensing authority for SolarCity’s application for a 
location permit. 

 

 - 2 - 
6518468.1 



C. The standards of the Maine Department of Transportation would govern the 
location, depth and height of electrical lines placed along the public ways 

 
Section 2503 provides that where a local licensing authority, such as the Town, has not 

adopted standards governing the location, depth and height of utilities along state or state-aid 
highways within municipal urban compact areas, the standards adopted by the Maine DOT 
govern.  Id. at § 2503(21)).  These standards are codified in the Maine DOT’s Utility 
Accommodation Policy.  See 17-229 C.M.R. ch. 210 (hereinafter “UAP”).   

 
In this case, the Town has not adopted standards governing the location, depth and height 

of utilities along state or state-aid highways within its urban compact areas, or for any of the 
Town’s city streets or town ways.  Consequently, the standards of the Maine DOT as articulated 
in the Utility Accommodation Policy would govern with respect to the portions of the electrical 
line running along state aid highways within the Town’s urban compact area.  For the sake of 
consistency, these same standards would govern any portion of the line running along the 
Town’s city streets and/or town ways.   

 
D. SolarCity should be listed as a utility on the MaineDOT Utility Database as a 

condition of receiving a location permit 
 
Pursuant to Maine DOT’s Utility Accommodation Policy, only a “utility” may apply for 

and receive a location permit for construction of an electrical line or similar facility along public 
ways where the Maine DOT is the applicable licensing authority.  See UAP at § 5(1).  A “utility” 
is defined under the policy as: 

  
1. A public utility regulated by the Maine Public Utilities Commission; or  

 
2. Other public and private entities that are authorized by 35-A M.R.S.A. ch. 23 to locate 

their facilities along public ways, provided the entities are “providing services to the 
general public” or to regulated public utilities.   

 
Id. at § 4.  The Maine DOT maintains a database—the MaineDOT Utility Database—that 
identifies entities authorized to locate their facilities along public ways.  According to Maine 
DOT, a utility must be listed on the MaineDOT Utility Database (and also apply for a location 
permit) in order to locate facilities along a public way within the Maine DOT’s jurisdiction.  See 
Maine DOT, Utility Services: Rules and Permits, available at 
http://www.maine.gov/mdot/utilities/utilityissues.htm.  
 
 “Private entities” may not apply for or obtain a location permit under the DOT’s Utility 
Accommodation Policy.  UAP at § 5(1).  A “private entity” is defined under the policy as a 
private organization or individual, other than a “utility,” that owns, operates, controls and 
maintains facilities that exist for its own use.  Id. at § 4. 
 
 Here, SolarCity is not a “private entity,” because although it proposes to own and operate 
the proposed electrical line, the line is not for its own use but for Bowdoin’s.  Rather, SolarCity 
is a “utility” under the DOT’s Utility Accommodation Policy, because it is a private entity that 

 - 3 - 
6518468.1 



provides its services to the general public, and Bowdoin College specifically in this case, and is 
authorized by 35 M.R.S.A. § 2305-B to locate facilities along public ways as long as it satisfies 
the four conditions identified above.  However, to be consistent with the Utilities 
Accommodation Policy and to remove any doubt as to SolarCity’s status as a utility, the Town 
should require that SolarCity become listed as a utility on the MaineDOT Utility Database as a 
condition of receiving a location permit. 
 

E. Schedule for SolarCity’s submission of an application for a location permit 
 
The following schedule would allow SolarCity’s application to be placed on the agenda 

and heard at the Town Council meeting on Monday, May 5, 2014: 
 
SolarCity submits its application to the Town 
 

April 11, 2014 

SolarCity provides the following public notice of its application: 
 

• Publication of the application in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the Town 

 
• Notice of the application and the hearing to be held on the 

application at the Town Council’s meeting on May 5, 2014, 
to be provided to abutters by certified mail 

 

April 18, 2014 

Town provides public notice of the hearing to be held on 
SolarCity’s application at the Town Council’s meeting on May 5, 
2014 
 

April 28, 2014 

Deadline for an abutter to file with the Town a written objection to 
SolarCity’s application   
 

May 2, 2014 

Town Council meeting / hearing concerning SolarCity’s 
application 
 

May 5, 2014 

 
 

SEFL:kjh 
 
 

 - 4 - 
6518468.1 



 
 

 
ITEM 50 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 

28 FEDERAL STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011-1583 

 
 

 
TELEPHONE      207-721-0292 

FAX                      207-725-6663 

 
 
 

TO:  Brunswick Town Council Members 
 
FROM:  Linda Smith, Business Development Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Frosty’s Donuts, LLC Request to submit a Letter of Intent (LOI) for a Community 

Development Block Grant application 
 
DATE:  April 24, 2014 
 

Frosty’s Donuts, Inc. is requesting a Letter of Intent (LOI) from the Town of Brunswick to submit to the 
Department of Economic and Community Development’s Office of Community Development for $160,050 
from the Community Development Block Grant Economic Development program to provide funding to 
support their production expansion to 119 Orion Street at Brunswick Landing. 

Frosty's Donut Shop was established in 1965 in Brunswick, Maine. In its nearly 50 years, Frosty's has 
become regarded as an “iconic institution” in the community and has attained regional and national 
recognition. Since Nels and Shelby Omdal purchased the business in 2012, they have grown the 
company from a start-up which they ran themselves to having 23 full time employees. They have grown 
from one to three retail locations and developed a thriving wholesale division that is continuing to 
expand. They are unable to further develop the business without a larger production facility. 

They are seeking production space in the former NASB Building # 51 located at 119 Orion Street at the 
Brunswick Landing. They will do all donut production in that facility and will have the capacity to add new 
products to the Frosty's brand and in turn will need to hire more employees. By redeveloping Building 
#51 at the Brunswick Landing, they will not only be improving the property, but also creating a new 
"destination" location at the Brunswick Landing as they will host the public for tours of the facility and will 
have a small retail kiosk on site. The new space will hire a minimum of seven (7) new employees within 
the next year.  

When the Omdals re-opened Frosty’s in February of 2012, they received a congratulatory letter from 
U.S. Senator Susan Collins who stated that small businesses are the heart of Maine’s economy.  They 
take pride in maintaining the legacy of Frosty’s Donuts, offering a high quality product for their faithful 
customers, providing a living for 30 employees (23 current and 7 new), and supporting the economy of 
Brunswick and the State of Maine.  

The draft Letter of Intent is attached for your reference. Shelby and Nels Omdal will be available at the 
April 28, 2014 Town Council meeting to answer any questions. 

Attachment 

Cc: John Eldridge, Interim Town Manager, Town of Brunswick 
       Shelby & Nels Omdal, Co-owners, Frosty’s Donuts, LLC        



 
State of Maine 

Community Development Block Grant Program 
2014 Economic Development Program 

Letter of Intent to Apply 
Due the first Friday of each month by 4:00 p.m.* 

Letters of Intent may be submitted via email to: ocd.loi@maine.gov 
Please enter “EDP LOI” in the subject line. 

 
2014 CDBG Program Funds are not expected to be available before July 1, 2014. 

 
All communities wishing to apply for assistance under the 2014 Economic Development Program must use this Letter of 
Intent to document compliance with requirements established by Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act 
of 1974, as amended and the State of Maine CDBG program. Applicants who submit a completed Letter of Intent deemed 
to be fully compliant will be notified by OCD that they are eligible to submit a final application.  Eligibility to submit a final 
application does not imply final project approval or funding. 
 
EDP PROJECT PARTICIPANTS 
 
Legal Applicant (Community): 
 
Applicant: Town of Brunswick 

 
Phone: 207-725-6659 

Address: 85 Union Street Fax: 207-725-6663 

City, ZIP+4: Brunswick ME 04011 E-Mail: jeldridge@brunswickme.org 

Contact: John Eldridge, Interim Town Manager 

DUNS #: Applicant DUNS (Dunn & Bradstreet) #:   077466274 
(visit www.nea.gov/grants/apply/DUNS.html if applicant needs to obtain a number) 

OCD Development Program Manager (Name and Date of Consultation Required): 
                                                                                                                                       Deb Johnson / April 22, 2014  
 

 
Business to be assisted:  
 
Business  Frosty’s Donuts, LLC Phone: 207-729-4255 

Address: 54 Maine Street Fax:  

City, ZIP: Brunswick ME 04011 E-Mail: shelbystandre@gmail.com 

Contact: Shelby & Nels Omdal  or Stacey Durrell  
Stacey.durrell@outlook.com  

Title Partners  or Operations Mgr 

DUNS #: Applicant Business DUNS (Dunn & Bradstreet) #:     APPLIED FOR 
(visit www.nea.gov/grants/apply/DUNS.html if business needs to obtain a number) 

 
Is business to be assisted      Retail                              Start-up    

 
 

*If the first Friday of the month falls on a holiday the EDP Letter of Intent will be due by 4:00pm on the next 
business day. 
2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

1 

mailto:ocd.loi@maine.gov
http://www.nea.gov/grants/apply/DUNS.html
mailto:shelbystandre@gmail.com
http://www.nea.gov/grants/apply/DUNS.html


 
 
EDP ELIGIBLE ACTIVITY CATEGORIES  
 

 
 
 
 

Grants to Municipalities:  
for acquisition, relocation,  demolition, clearance, construction,  
reconstruction, installation and rehabilitation associated with  public  
infrastructure projects such as water and sewer improvements,  
flood and drainage improvements, publicly-owned commercial                             $1,000,000 
and industrial buildings, parking, streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, etc.    
All public infrastructure must be owned by the municipality or public  
or private utility and be in support of an identified business.   

 Grants to Municipalities for Direct Business Support:   
for capital and non-capital equipment, land and site improvements,  
rehabilitation or construction of commercial or industrial buildings,                      $1,000,000   
job training, working capital and capital equipment and be in  
support of an identified business.  Acquisition is not an allowable  
activity under this group. 

 
Applicants may apply in only one specific grant activity group. 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM FUNDS CANNOT BE USED TO REFINANCE EXISTING 

DEBT 
PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
Using the space provided please provide a clear, concise description of the proposed development 
project.  Be sure to clearly explain how EDP funds will be utilized, the financing gap that exists in 
order to do the project and the timeline in which the CDBG-EDP funds will be expended and 
information relative to jobs being created and/or retained.   

 

Frosty's Donut Shop was established in 1965 in Brunswick, Maine. In its nearly 50 years, Frosty's has become regarded 
as an “iconic institution” in the community and has attained regional and national recognition. Since Nels and Shelby 
Omdal purchased the business in 2012, they have grown the company from a start-up which they ran themselves to 
having 23 full time employees. They have grown from one to three retail locations and developed a thriving wholesale 
division that is continuing to expand. They are unable to further develop the business without a larger production facility. 
 
They are seeking production space in the former NASB Building # 51 located at 119 Orion Street at the Brunswick 
Landing. They will do all donut production in that facility and will have the capacity to add new products to the Frosty's 
brand and in turn will need to hire more employees. By redeveloping Building #51 at the Brunswick Landing, they will 
not only be improving the property, but also creating a new "destination" location at the Brunswick Landing as they will 
host the public for tours of the facility and will have a small retail kiosk on site. Frosty’s is requesting $160,050 in CDBG 
financing, the Maine Regional Development Authority (MRRA) has been approached for a $50,000 working capital loan, 
Bank of Maine has been approached for a $77,000 line of credit, and the owners have committed $33,050 of equity to the 
project. These funds will support a build-out, including new walls and flooring, lighting, back-up generator and other 
building improvements ($70,000), purchase of equipment for a new production kitchen ($208,000), and training for the 
new employees ($42,000). Frosty’s will hire a minimum of seven (7) new employees within the next year. 
 
When the Omdals re-opened Frosty’s in February of 2012, they received a congratulatory letter from U.S. Senator Susan 
Collins who stated that small businesses are the heart of Maine’s economy.  They take pride in maintaining the legacy of 
Frosty’s Donuts, offering a high quality product for their faithful customers, providing a living for 30 employees (23 
current and 7 new), and supporting the economy of Brunswick and the State of Maine. 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

2 



 
EDP DOLLARS PER JOB CREATED 
 

The maximum CDBG participation per job created with EDP funds is $30,000. 
 
JOB RETENTION INFORMATION (Fill in job information below) 
 

 
The applicant must also attach documentation to this Letter of Intent such as public announcement of 
lay-offs, public announcement of imminent closure, financial records) of impending job loss without 
CDBG Program assistance.  Completion of Job Retention Assurances and Job Retention 
Summary Documentation must be completed and submitted to the Office of Community 
Development before applicant will be invited to submit an EDP application.  Forms require 
completion and must be signed by both the municipal and business CEO.  Please pay close attention 
to the definition of permanent, full time and full time equivalent jobs.   
 
JOB CREATION INFORMATION (Fill in job information below) 

 
 

Occupation/Job Title # of 
Jobs 

Work 
 Location 

Hire  
Date 

Hourly  
Salary 

Hourly Salary with eligible 
fringe benefits 

Baker 2 Brunswick 
Landing 

July 14.00 $19.00   Vacation-Heath; Retirement 

Assistant Baker  2 Brunswick 
Landing 

July 11.00 $14.00   Vacation-Heath; Retirement 

Donut Finisher 3 Brunswick 
Landing 

July 10.00 $13.00   Vacation-Heath; Retirement 

      
      

 
In determining CDBG National Objective compliance with job retention only Permanent jobs may be 
counted; temporary jobs may not.  Full time jobs require a worker to work at least 1750 hours per 
year.  Part time jobs require a worker to work at least 875 hours but less than 1750 hours per year.  
Part-time jobs must be converted to Full Time Equivalents (FTE).  An FTE is defined as two part time 
jobs.  Seasonal jobs may count only if the seasonal job lasts long enough and provides sufficient 
income to be considered the employee's principal occupation.  (Contact OCD prior to counting 
seasonal jobs towards LMI benefit.)  All permanent jobs created by the project must be counted, 
regardless of funding source(s).  Jobs indirectly created by the project (i.e., remote location, “trickle 
down” jobs) do not count. 

 
G. COST ESTIMATES & PROJECT FUNDING 

 

Provide the estimated project cost, amount of CDBG funds to be requested and sources, amounts 
and dates secured for all anticipated cash matching funds.  
 

Applicants for Economic Development Program funds must certify and provide documentation, at 
time of application, that there is a 100% cash match of the total EDP award.  Matching funds must be 
directly related to the activities undertaken with EDP funding and must be firm commitments from 
non-CDBG funds and documented by binding commitment letters submitted with the final application.  

Number of Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Jobs to be Retained: 

Number of Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Jobs to be Created: 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

3 



 
Prior commitments and in-kind contributions are not considered as match.  Project must demonstrate 
that there is a gap between sources and uses and that CDBG funds are needed to fill that gap. 
Communities receiving an EDP award may not receive any other EDP award for the same project or 
business during the same program year or for the same or project or business from a prior program 
year that has not met final closeout status.   
 

All construction estimates should be prepared by the Engineer/Architect.  Take into account the 
inflation rate in relation to the anticipated starting date of the project and applicable DAVIS/BACON 
wage rates as they apply to construction costs.  Please note projects with a total cost exceeding 
$3,000,000 are not eligible for EDP assistance. The minimum request for EDP assistance is 
$100,000*. 
 

Total Estimated Project Cost:   $  320,100 CDBG Request:   $  160,050 

 
Funding Source Amount Date Secured 

CDBG-EDP  $  160,050 Pending approval 
MRRA $    50,000 Pending approval 
Business Assets $    33,050 Owner Capital 
Bank of Maine $    77,000 Line of Credit - Pending 
   
   
   
   

TOTAL:   $ 320,100  
 
EDP PROJECTS IN SUPPORT OF RETAIL BUSINESSES  

 

EDP applications in support of a retail business must attach written documentation to 
this  Letter of Intent for each of the  following limited conditions: 
 
1. The retail business represents the provisions of new products and services previously 
unavailable in the community or is a tourism-related business; and 
 
2. The development or expansion of the retail business represents a net economic gain for the 
community and the region.  Applications supporting a retail business or businesses are required 
to certify that the development represents a new overall gain for the region economy and not a 
shift from existing established businesses to a new or expanded one; and 
 
3. The retail business is located in either a downtown district meeting the definition of PL 776 
enacted by the 119th legislature; or a designated local growth area contained in an adopted and 
consistent comprehensive plan; and 
 
4. At least 50% of the jobs created by the retail business must be full time jobs. 

 
*Projects seeking less than $100,000 in CDBG EDP funds must have received approval from 
the Office of Community Development prior to submission of the EDP Letter of Intent. 
 
 
 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

4 



 
 

Applicant & Business Certifications 
 
 

As an authorized official of the applicant community and/or business, I certify under the 
penalties of perjury that: 
 

1.  To the best of my knowledge and belief, all information contained in this Letter of Intent 
and all attached documentation is true and correct and current as of the date signed below; 
 

2.  This Letter of Intent complies with all applicable State and federal laws and regulations; 
 

3.   Both parties signing this Letter of Intent are cognizant of the requirement that 
should the intended Job Creation/Retention National Objective of the CDBG program 
not be met all CDBG funds must be repaid to the State of Maine CDBG program;  
DECD may elect to secure such requirement/repayment with assets of the Applicant 
Business for a term of up to five years should this project be approved for funding; 
 
4.  Approval of this Letter of Intent by OCD to submit a final application does not imply final 
project approval or funding. 
 

Signature of Chief Executive Officer: 
 
 
 

Printed or Typed Name: 
 
John Eldridge, Interim Town Manager 

Name of Applicant Community: 
 
Town of Brunswick 
 

Date: 

 
Signature of Chief Executive Officer: 
 
 
 

Printed or Typed Name: 
Shelby Omdal 
Nels Omdal 

Name of Applicant Business: 
 
Frosty’s Donuts, LLC 
 
 

Date: 

 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

5 



 
STATE OF MAINE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM GRANT APPLICATION 

 

 
GRANTEE/BUSINESS ASSURANCES                             

                                                                        

JOB RETENTION 
                                                                        
           The Business ______(as identified below), having applied for funding from the Town/City of __ 

______ (as identified below) through the Maine assures that it has discussed job retention 
project goals with the applicant business.  The Municipality is assured that ______ jobs will be 
retained for a period of no less than two years from the date of the CDBG contract 
between the municipality and the State of Maine. The Business (as identified below) 
assures that these jobs will be retained and that timely and completed documentation will be 
provided to the Municipality necessary to verify job retention achievements.  Both the 
Municipality and the Business assure that low and moderate-income persons hold at least 51% 
of the jobs retained.                          

            
In determining CDBG National Objective compliance with job retention only Permanent jobs 
may be counted; temporary jobs may not.  Full time jobs require a worker to work at least 1750 
hours per year.  Part time jobs require a worker to work at least 875 hours but less than 1750 
hours per year.  Part-time jobs must be converted to Full Time Equivalents (FTE).  An FTE is 
defined as two part time jobs.  Seasonal jobs may count only if the seasonal job lasts long 
enough and provides sufficient income to be considered the employee's principal occupation.  
(Contact OCD prior to counting seasonal jobs towards LMI benefit.)  All permanent jobs 
created by the project must be counted, regardless of funding source(s).  Jobs indirectly 
created by the project (i.e., remote location, “trickle down” jobs) do not count. 

             
All job retention information reported on this form will be reviewed by OCD. 

                                         
         
 Municipality 
                        
                                                   
           Signature of Municipal CEO                             Date 
 
       
 Business 
 
            
 Signature of Business CEO   Date 
 

The applicant must attach documentation to this form (such as public 
announcement of lay-offs, public announcement of imminent closure, financial 

records) of impending job loss without CDBG Program assistance. 
 
 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

6 



 
 

STATE OF MAINE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM GRANT APPLICATION 
 
 

JOB RETENTION SUMMARY DOCUMENTATION 
 

TO BE DETERMINED BY EMPLOYEE SURVEY AND VERIFIED THROUGH SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 

JOB TITLE   Job 
Class* 

#  JOBS RETAINED 
Qualified 

full              part                  
time            time 

# LMI JOBS 
RETAINED 

full          part          
time        time   

# NON LMI JOBS            
RETAINED 

full            part 
time          time 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

All existing employees must be surveyed prior to making application to determine LMI status and 
establish an employment baseline for future reference. 

All job retention information reported on this form must be submitted for reviewed by OCD. 

* Attach a job description for each job title for which a position will be retained 
and use the job category definition numbers outlined below to indicate job class.         
 
The above information has been compiled using the individual surveys of all affected employees of the 
Business (as identified above). 
 
This survey was based on family income as defined by the HUD Low/Moderate Income Limits, which apply to 
the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program.  To the best of my knowledge, all information 
represented above is true and factual.  Assurances are also given that “Clear and Objective” evidence exists 
documenting the above jobs would actually be lost without CDBG Program funding, and that this evidence 
exists in the form of a notice issued by the assisted party to affected employees, a public announcement, 
relevant financial records or other form acceptable to the Department of Economic and Community 
Development.   
 
        __________________________ 
Signature of Human Resources Officer   Date 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

7 



 
 
 

JOB CATEGORY DEFINITIONS AND CLASS NUMBERS 
 
1. Officials and Managers – Occupants requiring administrative personnel who set broad policies, 

exercise overall responsibility of execution of these policies, and individual departments or special 
phases of a firm’s operations.  This includes: Officials, Executives, middle management, plant 
managers and superintendents, salaried supervisors who are members of management, 
purchasing agents and buyers, and kindred workers. 

 
2. Professional – Occupants requiring either college graduation or experience of such kind and 

amount as to provide a comparable background includes: accountants and auditors, airplane 
pilots and navigators, architects, artists, chemists, designers, dietitians, editors, engineers, 
lawyers, librarians, mathematicians, natural scientists, registered professional nurses, professional 
and labor relations workers, physical scientists, physicians, social scientists, teachers, and kindred 
workers. 

 
3. Technicians – Occupants requiring a combination of basic scientific knowledge and manual skill 

which can be obtained through about 2 years of post-high school education such as is offered in 
many technical institutions and junior colleges, or through equivalent on the job training.  This 
includes:  computer programmers and operators, drafters, engineering aides, junior engineers, 
mathematic aides, licensed practical or vocational nurses, photographers, radio operators, 
scientific assistants, surveyors, technical illustrators, technicians (medical, dental, electronic, 
physical science) and kindred workers. 

 
4. Sales – Occupants engaging wholly or primarily in direct selling.  This includes: advertising 

agenda and sales workers; insurance agents and brokers; real estate agents and brokers; sales 
workers, demonstrators and retail sales workers; and sales clerks, grocery clerks and cashiers; 
and kindred workers. 

 
5. Office and Clerical – Includes all clerical-type work regardless of level of difficulty, where the 

activities are predominantly non-manual though some manual work not directly involved with 
altering or transporting the products is included.  This includes: bookkeepers, cashiers, collectors 
(bills and accounts), messengers and office helpers, office machine operators, shipping and 
receiving clerks, stenographers, typists, and secretaries, telegraph and telephone operators, and 
kindred workers. 

 
6. Craft Worker (skilled) – Manual workers of relatively high level having a thorough and 

comprehensive knowledge of the processes involved in their work.  Exercise considerable 
independent judgment and usually receive an extensive period of training.  This includes:  the 
building trades, hourly paid supervisors and lead operators (who are not members of 
management), mechanic and repairers, skilled machining occupations, compositors and 
typesetters, electricians, engravers, job setters (metal), motion picture projectionists, pattern and 
model makers, stationary engineers, tailors, and kindred workers. 

 
 
 
 
 
2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

8 



 
 

STATE OF MAINE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

Economic Development Program Development Grant Application  
JOB CATEGORY DEFINITIONS AND CLASS NUMBERS 

(continued) 
 
 
 
7. Operatives (semi-skilled) – Workers who operate machines or other equipment or perform other 

factory-type duties of intermediate skill level which can be mastered in a few weeks and require 
only limited training.  This includes:  apprentices (auto mechanics, plumbers, electricians, 
machinists, mechanics, building trades, metal working trades, printing trades, etc.), operatives, 
attendants (auto service and parking), blasters, chauffeurs, delivery workers, dress makers and 
sewers (except factory), dryer’s furnaces workers, heaters (metal), laundry and dry cleaning 
operatives, milliners, mine operatives and laborers, motor operators, oilers and greasers (except 
auto), painters (except construction and maintenance), photographic process workers, boiler 
tenders, truck and tractor drivers, weavers (textile), welders and flame metals workers, and 
kindred workers.  

 
8. Laborers (unskilled) – Workers in manual occupations which generally require no special 

training perform elementary duties that may be learned in a few days and require the application 
of little or no independent judgment.  This includes: garage laborers; car washers and greasers; 
gardeners (except farm) and ground keepers; stevedores; wood choppers; laborers performing 
lifting, digging, mixing loading, and pulling operations; and kindred workers. 

 
9. Service workers – Workers in both protective and non-protective service occupations. This 

includes attendants (hospital and other institutions, professional and personal service, including 
nurses aides and orderlies), barbers, chair workers and cleaners, cooks (except household), 
counter and fountain workers, elevator operators, firefighters and fire protection guards, door 
keepers, stewards, janitors, police officers and detectives, porters, waiters and waitresses, and 
kindred workers. 

 
 
 

2014 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 

9 





 
 

 
ITEM 51 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE	
 

To: 
 Brunswick Town Council 

From:  
Gerald Favreau  
Chair Appointments Committee 

Date:  
April 16, 2014 

Fellow Councilors, 

On the evenings of April 9 and April 16, 2014, the Appointments Committee met to interview 
candidates/applicants for (2) Committees. 

Conservation Commission 
River and Coastal Water Commission 
 
The Appointments Committee is hereby (unanimously) recommending for appointments as 
follows: 

Conservation Commission:   
Stephen Cohen (New appointment) 
(Uncontested)  
 
River and Coastal Water Commission: (New Committee) (9  Applicants) 
Mark Worthing (Citizen Member - 3 Year Term) contested 
Sue Stableford (Citizen Member - 2 Year Term) contested 
Bill Good (Citizen Member - 2 Year Term) contested 
Helene Marsh Harrower (Water-Dependent Commercial Interest Member - 3 Year Term) 
uncontested 
 
2 Alternates: 
Mark Holbrook (Citizen Member - 2 Year Term) contested 
Douglas Niven (Citizen Member - 2 Year Term) contested 
 
Nominations from the floor are always allowed. 
 
 
 



 
BRUNSWICK BOARD COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE CURRENT & UPCOMING OPENINGS FOR 2014 

 
The Brunswick Town Council will be holding interviews in February, for the following Board Commission and Committee vacancies 
listed below.  Interested citizens should complete an application form, available in the Town Clerk's Office.  Please return applications 
to the Town Clerk's Office by 4:30 P.M. on Monday, April 14, 2014, in order to be interviewed on Wednesday, April 16, 2014.  
 
Existing Vacancies on Boards Commissions and Committees 
 
Assessment Review Board  
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 01/01/2017 
Conservation Commission 
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2017 
Downtown & Outer Pleasant Street Master Plan Implementation Committee 
 1 member - Pleasant Street Business Owner 
Fair Hearing Authority 
 3 members – balance of 3 year terms to expire on 10/01/2014 
Marine Resource Committee  
 1 alternate member – Commercial Harvester - 3 year term to expire 05/01/2017 

1 alternate member – Non License holder balance of 3 year term to expire 05/01/2015 
Personnel Board  
 1 full member – balance of 3 year term to expire on 01/12/2015 
Recycling Committee 
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 01/01/2017 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
 2 associate members – balance of 3 year terms to expire on 07/01/2016 
 1 associate member – balance of 3 year term to expire on 07/01/2015 
 
Special Committee: 
River & Coastal Waters Commission 
 3 citizen members – terms to expire as follows: 05/01/2016 (2) and 05/01/2017 (1) 
 1 member who represents water-dependent commercial interests – term to expire on 05/01/2017 
 
Upcoming vacancies for 2014  (Please apply at least one month prior to the month vacancy occurs – you may apply for an 
upcoming vacancy at any time) 
 
April 
Sewer District  
 1 members – 3 year term to expire on 04/01/2017 
May 
Marine Resource Committee 
 1 member – Non License Holder - 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2017 
Conservation Commission 
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2017 
Trust Fund Advisory Committee 
 1 member (citizen) – 3 year term to expire on 5/10/2017 
June 
Housing Authority 
 1 member (participant in program) – 5 year term to expire on 06/03/2019 
Davis Fund Committee 

2 members – 3 year terms to expire on 06/30/2017 
July 
Recreation Commission 
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 07/01/2017 
September 
Water District - Brunswick 
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 09/13/2017 
October 
Village Review Board 
 1 member (district resident) – 3 year term to expire on 10/20/2017 
 1 member (architect/historian) – 3 year term to expire on 10/20/2017 
December 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
 1 full member – 3 year term to expire on 12/18/2017 
 1 associate member – 3 year term to expire on 12/18/2017 



Summary of Received Applications 4/9/2014
Date of Application

Conservation Commission
CohenStephen 75 Long St  975-0132 4/1/2014

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Interview Time: Wed., April 9, 2014 at 6:45 pm

Wednesday, April 09, 2014 Page 1 of 2



Date of Application

River & Coastal Water Commission
4/2/2014

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Interview Time: Wed., April 9, 2014 at 7:00 pm

FeeneyMitchell 44 Eastern Shore Rd 207-415-337 3/25/2014

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Citizen Interview Time: Wed., April 9, 2014 at 6:15 pm

FordRosemary 43 Emanual Dr 207 373 134 3/31/2014

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Citizen Interview Time: Wed., April 9, 2014 at 6:00 pm

Good, Jr.Bill 18 Bowdoin St  267-6119 3/14/2014

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Citizen Interview Time: Wed., April 16th at 6:15 pm

HarrowerHelene 48 Melden Dr  841-5566 4/2/2014

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Commercial intere Interview Time: Wed., April 9, 2014 at 7:00 pm

HolbrookMark 130 Given Shipyard Rd 207-725-431 3/17/2014

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Citizen Interview Time: Wed., April 16, 2014 at 6:45 p

NivenDouglas 3 Sumac Dr 207 729 117 3/17/2014

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Citizen Interview Time: Wed., April 9, 2014 at 6:30 pm

StablefordSue 12 Larkspur Ln  402-9843 3/17/2014

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Citizen Interview Time: Wed., April 16, 2014 at 6:30 p

WorthingMark 26 Eastern Shore Rd.  729-6050 3/13/2014

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Citizen Interview Time: Wed., April 16, 2014 at 6:00 p

Village Review Board
SiegleMargaret 11 Sand Hill Dr  729-1348 2/4/2014

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Full Interview Time: Wed., July 16, 2014 at 6:00 p

Wednesday, April 09, 2014 Page 2 of 2













































 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
March 31, 2014 

7:00 P.M.  
There will be a workshop following the meeting 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Councilors Present: Chair Benet Pols, W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, John M. 

Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, and John 
Richardson, Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: Councilor Suzan Wilson  
 
Town Staff Present: John Eldridge, Finance Director/Interim Town Manager; Fran Smith, 

Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager; Tom Farrell, Parks and 
Recreation Director; John Foster, Public Works Director; and TV video 
crew. 

 
Chair Pols called the meeting to order, led the Pledge of Allegiance, and asked the Clerk for Roll 
Call.  He noted the meeting had been properly noticed. 
 
Correspondence 
 
Mr. Eldridge discussed a letter from MRRA regarding seeking a Declaratory Judgment for the 
tax exemption of Kestrel. 
 
(A copy of the letter will be attached to the official record.) 
 
Council Committee Updates 
 
Reports were given from the following committees: the Town Manager Search Committee, the 
Appointments Committee, and the Sidewalk Committee.  
 
Councilor Richardson spoke regarding a solar municipal project with MRRA, a vendor, and Alex 
Anesko from the Recycling and Sustainability Committee.  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
a) Adoption of a "Poem in Your Pocket Proclamation” (Action required) 
 
Kathy Koerber spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Pols read the proclamation. 



Town Council Minutes 
March 31, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adopt the “Poem in Your Pocket 
Proclamation.”  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the adopted Proclamation and additional information on this project will be attached 
to the official minutes.) 
 
b) Adoption of “Resolution Recognizing National Service Recognition Day” (Action 

required) 
 
Mr. Eldridge spoke regarding this item and read the resolution. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to adopt the “Resolution 
Recognizing National Service Recognition Day.” The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
c) Update on new Town Hall project 
 
Mr. Eldridge spoke regarding this item and responded to questions from Councilor Favreau and 
Councilor Millett.  
 
d) (ADDED) Recognition of Ms. Henze for becoming Certified Public Finance Officer 
 
Mr. Eldridge congratulated Julie Henze, Deputy Finance Director, for this accomplishment. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
36. The Town Council will consider adopting the “Town Council Order Authorizing an 

Extension of the Lease of the Train Station/Visitor’s Center at Maine Street 
Station” between the Town of Brunswick and JHR Development of Maine, and will 
take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

 
Mr. Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Richardson abstained, as his law firm negotiated the agreement. 
 
Councilor Perreault asked questions, to which Mr. Eldridge and Chair Pols responded. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to adopt “Town Council Order 
Authorizing an Extension of the Lease of the Train Station/Visitor’s Center at Maine Street 
Station” between the Town of Brunswick and JHR Development of Maine.  The motion 
carried with seven (7) yeas. Councilor Richardson abstained. 
 
(A copy of the order and lease will be attached to the official minutes.) 



Town Council Minutes 
March 31, 2014 
Page 3 
 
 
37. The Council Chair will appoint members to the Cable TV Franchise Negotiating 

Committee, and will take any appropriate action. (Chair Pols) 
 
Chair Pols appointed Councilor Watson, Councilor Richardson, and Ben Duffy from the Cable 
TV Committee to serve on this committee.   
 
38. The Town Council will consider a request from Frosty’s Donuts for Sellers of 

Prepared Food on Public Ways for outdoor seating, and will take any appropriate 
action. (Manager)  

 
Ms. Smith spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Favreau spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to approve an application for 
Sellers of Prepared Food on Public Ways for outdoor seating for Frosty’s Donuts, 54 Maine 
Street.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:26 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES. THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
April 15, 2014 
 

April 28, 2014 
Date of Approval 

 
 

______________ 
Council Chair 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
April 7, 2014 

6:30 P.M. - Executive Session 
7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Councilors Present: Chair Benet Pols, W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, 

John M. Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, 
and John Richardson, Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: John Eldridge, Finance Director/Interim Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town 

Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager;; Donald Koslosky, Deputy Fire 
Chief;  Linda Smith, Business Development Manager; Dan Devereaux, 
Marine Warden; Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Pols called the meeting to order, and asked the Clerk for Roll Call.  
 
Executive Session: consultations with legal counsel regarding pending or contemplated 
litigation [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)] 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to go into executive session for 
consultations with legal counsel regarding pending or contemplated litigation per 1 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E).  The motion carried with seven (7) yeas.   Councilor Millett and 
Councilor Wilson arrived after the vote. 
 
Chair Pols resumed the meeting, acknowledged that meeting was properly noticed, and led the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Allison Harris, 38 Cumberland Street, read an email she sent to the Council regarding comments 
that were made at the March 24, 2014 meeting about her.   
 
(A copy of the email will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Correspondence   
 
Chair Pols spoke regarding Molly Bogart, from the Bath- Brunswick Branch of the American 
Association of University Women of Maine, and her article on Pay Parity for Women in 2014. 
 
Councilor Richardson spoke regarding an opportunity for a solar project on top of the new 
Recreation Building. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Councilor Perreault said it was nice to see the vendor on the Mall. 
 
Councilor Walker thanked Public Works for work done on Sumac Drive.  He inquired if the 
Town plans to better mark the speed bumps on Maine Street;  Mr. Eldridge responded. 
 
Councilor Favreau asked that an email from Emily Boochever regarding the layover facility be 
part of the record. 
 
(A copy of the email will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Council Committee Updates  
 
Councilor Brayman spoke on the BDC and Teen Center fundraiser at Gelato Fiasco.  
 
Adjustments to the Agenda None 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
a) Permission to apply for MMA Safety Enhancement Grant to assist with the purchase of 

turnout gear for the Fire Department (Action Required) 
 
Deputy Fire Chief Don Koslosky spoke regarding this item.  
  
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to apply for, and, if received, 
expend a MMA Safety Enhancement Grant to assist with the purchase of two sets of 
turnout gear for the Fire Department in an amount up to $3,592.  The motion carried with 
nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of Deputy Chief Koslosky’s memo will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
b) Permission to apply for MMA Safety Enhancement Grant to assist with the purchase of 

a chemical air purifier for Town Hall (Action Required) 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to apply for, and, if received, 
expend a MMA Safety Enhancement Grant to assist with the purchase of a chemical air 
purifier for the new Town Hall in the amount $600.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of a memo from Jessica Factor, along with grant information, will be attached to the 
official minutes.) 
 
c) Report on MMA seeking nominations for their Executive Committee and Vice President  
 
Mr. Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
d) Update on Route 24 re-signing 
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 3 
 

 
 

Margo Knight, Chair of Master Plan Implementation Committee, and Anna Breinich, Director of 
Planning and Development, spoke regarding this item. 
 
(A copy of supporting materials will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
(e) (ADDED) Status on new Town Hall 
 
Mr. Eldridge gave this update. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
39. The Town Council will hear public comments for amendments to the Chapter 11 

“Marine Activities, Structures and Ways – Article III Shellfishing” relative to 
increasing the conservation credit points for commercial harvesters from 10 to 20 
per year, to be enacted on an emergency and regular basis, and will take any 
appropriate action. (Councilor Walker and Councilor Wilson) 

 
Councilor Walker spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Pols opened the public hearing; hearing no comments, he closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Wilson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to adopt amendments to Chapter 11 
“Marine Activities, Structures and Ways – Article III Shellfishing” relative to increasing 
the conservation credit points for commercial harvesters from 10 to 20 per year, along with 
changes adding definitions for American Oysters, European Oysters, and Razor Clams, to 
be enacted on an emergency and regular basis.  The motion carried nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the adopted ordinance will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
40. The Town Council will consider writing a letter to the Federal Rail Administration 

(FRA) supporting the Brunswick West Neighborhood Coalition’s request that the 
FRA conduct an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) of NNEPRA’s proposal to 
build a maintenance and layover facility at the Brunswick West site, and will take 
any appropriate action.  (Councilor Perreault and Councilor Millett) 

 
Councilor Perreault spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to write a letter to the Federal Rail 
Administration (FRA) supporting the Brunswick West Neighborhood Coalition’s (BWNC) 
request that the FRA conduct an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) of NNEPRA’s 
proposal to build a maintenance and layover facility at the Brunswick West site. 
 
The following people spoke in support of sending a letter: 
Robert Morrison, 37 Bouchard Drive 



Town Council Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 4 
 

 
 

Nicole Vinal-Harvie, 60 Hennessey Avenue 
Pete Worthington, 5 Spring Street  
Patrick Rael, 15 Bouchard Drive 
John Mackillop, 38 Bouchard Drive 
Fabian Rueger, 61 Hennessey Drive 
Ed Chambers, 52 Willow Grove Road 
Fred Horch, 44 Pleasant Street 
Richard Papetti, 8 Scott Avenue 
Bob Judd, 11 Lincoln Street 
Charles Wallace, 501 Mere Point Road 
Pem Schaeffer, 32 Crestview Lane 
Marybeth Burbank, 11 Cumberland Street 
 
The following people spoke against sending a letter: 
Margo Knight, 22 Page Street 
Jason Coombs, 16 Growing Bear Drive 
Jeff Reynolds, 36 Redwood Lane 
Herbert Richter, 80 Union Street 
Emily Boochever, 10 Pleasant Hill Road 
Karl Saila, 5 Meadowbrook Road 
Kathy Wilson, 144 Pleasant Street 
 
This item came back to the Council for discussion. 
 
The following Councilors spoke on this issue: Councilor Millett, Chair Pols, Councilor Watson, 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Walker, Councilor Wilson, Councilor Favreau, and Councilor 
Brayman. 
 
VOTE ON MOTION: 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to write a letter to the Federal Rail 
Administration (FRA) supporting the Brunswick West Neighborhood Coalition’s (BWNC) 
request that the FRA conduct an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) of NNEPRA’s 
proposal to build a maintenance and layover facility at the Brunswick West site.  The 
motion failed with four (4) yeas.  Councilor Watson, Councilor Walker, Councilor Wilson, 
Councilor Favreau, and Councilor Richardson were opposed. 
 
41. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for April 28, 2014, on a 

CDBG grant application for Greater Brunswick Housing Corporation, and will take 
any appropriate action. (Manager) 

 
Mr. Eldridge spoke regarding this item and responded to questions from Councilor Perreault  
 
John Hodge, Greater Brunswick Housing Corp, responded to questions from Councilor 
Brayman. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 5 
 

 
 

Councilor Millet recused herself from participation on this item since she might be involved in a 
real estate transaction with the grant applicant. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Wilson seconded, to set a public hearing for April 
28, 2014, on a CDBG grant application for Greater Brunswick Housing Corporation.  The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Millett abstained. 
 
42. The Town Council will consider selecting a firm to undertake the Town Manager 

search, and will take any appropriate action. (Chair Pols, Councilor Richardson, and 
Councilor Millett) 

 
Chair Pols spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Favreau spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Wilson, Councilor Perreault, Councilor Watson, Councilor Brayman, Councilor 
Watson, and Councilor Walker spoke regarding this item.  
 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, that the Town of Brunswick will 
engage the services of MMA to provide services in support of its search, recruitment, and 
contract negotiations for a new Town Manager.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the MMA proposal will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
43. The Town Council will consider requesting the Planning Board review section 604.7 

of the Zoning Ordinance relative to eliminating the sixty day restriction for political 
signs, and will take any appropriate action. (Chair Pols) 

 
Chair Pols spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Pols moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to request the Planning Board review of 
section 604.7 of the Zoning Ordinance relative to eliminating the sixty day restriction for 
political signs being allowed.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
44. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and 

Committees, and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 
 
Councilor Favreau nominated William Guindon to move up to the full member slot on the 
Personnel Board.  The vote was nine (9) yeas. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of March 17, 2014 
b) Approval of the Minutes of March 24, 2014 
c) Approval of quit claim deeds for property depicted as Map U37, Lot 029, Sub 000 

Typ 000 and a mobile home located depicted on Map U051, Lot 001, Sub 000 Typ 
353 



Town Council Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 6 
 

 
 

 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve the Consent Agenda.  
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Pols seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:05p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES. THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
April 24, 2014 
 

April 28, 2014 
Date of Approval 

 
 

______________ 
Council Chair 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



All Election Worker By Party 
LastName FirstName Party Address Active

Abernethy Jane Democrat 15 Chickadee Cir A

Breitbart Bernie Democrat 38 Cumberland St. A

Broberg Lucille Democrat 143 River Rd. #3 A

Connelly Mike Democrat 102 Jordan Ave. A

Drapeau Jacqueline Democrat 160 Jordan Ave. A

Duquesnoy Alice Democrat 7 Hawthorne St. A

George Kay Democrat 3 Androscoggin St. A

Gilbert Judy Democrat 45 Weymouth St. A

Hale Joan Democrat 5 Larrabee Farm Rd A

Harris Alison Democrat 38 Cumberland St. A

Hartley Betty Democrat 27 Ward Cir A

Leachman-Yee Christine Democrat 154 Mere Pt Rd A

Lloyd Judy Democrat 46 Chamberlain Ave. A

Lundquist Connie Democrat 11 Longfellow Ave. A

McEwen Maggie Democrat 15 Baxter Ln. A

Michaud Sue Democrat 14 Merrymeeting Rd. A

Ollier Dot Democrat 21 Lisbon Falls Rd. A

Rhode John Democrat 13 Mountain Ash Ave. A

Rhode Suzanne Democrat 13 Mountain Ash Ave. A

Smyth Debbie Democrat 23 Juniper Rd. A

Strange Chris Democrat 45 Gleed Dr. A

Tara Annee Democrat 34 Belmont St. A

Tucker Nancy Democrat 15 McKeen Street A

Wallace David Democrat 46 Chamberlain Ave. A

Wednesday, April 23, 2014 Page 1 of 3



LastName FirstName Party Address Active

Wilk Janet Democrat 6 Windy Ridge A

Yee Leland Democrat 154 Mere Pt Rd A

Yuodsnukis Barbara Democrat 276 Bunganuc Rd. A

Yuodsnukis Tony Democrat 276 Bunganuc Rd. A

Ansari Louise Republican 19 Riverview Dr. A

Bailey Scott Republican 12 Songbird Ln A

Banas Michael Republican 39 Tanglewood Dr. A

Bauman Judy Republican 85 Minott Shore Road A

Bauman Jack Republican 85 Minott Shore Road A

Bernstein Holly Republican 22 Richards Dr. A

Bridge Jim Republican 14 Pasture Way A

Bridge Kathy Republican 14 Pasture Way A

Burgess Dorothy (Dot) Republican 110 Old Pennellville Roa A

Collette Rod Republican 283 Bunganuc Rd. A

Collette Judy Republican 283 Bunganuc Road A

Connors Tasha Republican 29 Cumberland St. A

Frey Ann Republican 19 Beech Dr. A

Hastings Karen Republican 25 Beech Dr. A

Johnson Wolcott (Skip) Republican 6 Sagamore Ln. A

Kercel Stephen Republican 2 Brian Dr. A

King Sara Republican 122 Jordan Ave. A

Labrie Joan Republican 32 Meadowbrook Road A

Lawler Mary Anne Republican 22 Kimberley Circle A

Locke Bill Republican 255 Mere Pt. Rd. A

Maldonado Felix Republican 3 Bodwell St. A

McGinn Sarah Republican 40 Tanglewood Dr. A

Wednesday, April 23, 2014 Page 2 of 3



LastName FirstName Party Address Active

Nering June Republican 33 Cluf Bay Rd A

Patrick Mary Republican 79 Hennessey Avenue A

Rider Karen Republican 46 Arrowhead Dr. A

Smith Rudi Republican 7 Mast Ln A

Zrioka Oliver Republican 18 Davis St. A

Zrioka Teri Republican 18 Davis Street A

Zrioka Joe Republican 18 Davis Street A

Wednesday, April 23, 2014 Page 3 of 3



 
 

 
Consent Agenda – D, E, F, G 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - H 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

 

 

Brunswick, Maine 
John A. Foster, PE 
Town Engineer/Director PWD 
e-mail:  foster@brunswickme.org 

Public Works Department 
9 Industry Road 
Brunswick, Maine  04011 
(207) 725-6654  
FAX (207) 725-6655 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

 TO: John Eldridge, Town Manager 

 FROM: John A. Foster, Director, PWD 

 DATE: April 16, 2014 

 SUBJECT: Utility Location Permits 
 

Attached, for presentation to the Town Council are three applications for Utility Location Permits 
received from Maine Natural Gas. 
 
In application ULP 2014-02, Beech Drive       Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to install a 
2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on south side of Blueberry Lane, a short 
section of gas main will run northerly along the centerline of Beech Drive to the center of the cul-
de-sac located at the northerly terminus of Beech Drive. The balance of the gas main will run 
from the south side of Blueberry Ln along the east and south side of Beech Dr to a point about 
about 150 feet east of Hemlock Dr, the gas main will then cross Beach Dr and run westerly along 
the northerly side of Beech Dr to Hemlock Rd. Approximately 3300 feet of 2” gas main.   
In application ULP 2014-03, Chestnut Road     Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to install a 
2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the east and south side of Beech Dr. The 
new gas main will run from the proposed gas main north across Beech Dr along the easterly side 
of Chestnut Rd to the northerly terminus of Chestnut Rd. Another section of gas main will run 
from the south side of Beech Dr along the west side of Chestnut Rd to the north side of Sumac 
Dr. Approimately  1330 feet of 2” gas main.  
In application ULP 2014-04, Sumac Drive       Maine Natural Gas seeks authorization to install a 
2” gas main from the proposed gas main to be located on the south side of Beech Dr. One section 
of gas main will run northerly along the east side of Sumac Ln to the terminus of Sumac Dr. 
Another section of  new gas main will run from the proposed gas main along the west and north 
side of Sumac Dr to the east side of Locust Ln. Approximately 1370 feet of 2” gas main. 
Brunswick Public Works Department has no objection to these underground utility lines as 
proposed, providing it is approved subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The final location is subject to adjustment, as determined necessary by the Town 

Engineer, to provide adequate clearance from any underground facilities located by 
field verification by each utility. 

2. All work is subject to compliance with the Town’s Street Opening and road 
restoration requirements. 



jhiggins
Typewritten Text
ULP2014-02



jhiggins
Typewritten Text

jhiggins
Typewritten Text
ULP2014-03



jhiggins
Typewritten Text
ULP2014-04



9 
In

du
st

ria
l P

ar
kw

ay
, B

ru
ns

w
ic

k,
 M

ai
ne

 0
40

11

GRAPHIC SCALE

GRAPHIC SCALE



9 
In

du
st

ria
l P

ar
kw

ay
, B

ru
ns

w
ic

k,
 M

ai
ne

 0
40

11

GRAPHIC SCALE

GRAPHIC SCALE






	Binder1.pdf
	mr a on line only
	mr b yes
	mr b webpage common good
	mr c yes
	mr c spring_20140423150015
	mr d no
	mr e no
	47 yes
	47 app_20140423145926
	48 yes
	48 a Memo - GBHC CDBG Application (FINAL 4-23-2014)
	48 b COUNCIL RESOLUTION (for 4-28-2014)
	48 c CDBG LOI GBHC (FINAL 3-11-2014)
	48 d DECD - GBHC LOI Approval (3-18-2014)
	49 yes
	49 April 28 Memo to J. Eldridge re Location Permit for SolarCity, Bowdoin College
	50 yes
	50 Frosty's CDBG LOI Memo (FINAL 4-24-2014)
	50 2014 CDBG-EDP LOI - Frosty's (FINAL 4-24-2014)
	JOB RETENTION

	50 2014-04-22  Frosty's CDBG LOI withdrawal-consent - SIGNED
	51 yes
	51 full Interview for April 2014
	2014 Cohen S Consrv_20140401155341
	2014 Feeney M RCWC_20140325105221
	2014 Ford R RCWC_20140331125204
	2014 Good B RCWC _20140314085957
	2014 Harrower H RCWC_20140402120517
	2014 Holbrook M RCWC_20140317115905
	2014 Niven D RCWC_20140317143155
	2014 Stableford S RCWC_20140317080232
	2014 Worthing Mark RCWC _20140313124346

	ca a yes
	ca a March 31, 2014 min
	ca b yes
	ca b April 7, 2014 min
	ca c yes
	ca c rptAllElectionWorkerByParty
	ca h yes
	CA H Utility Location Permit Applications for Beech Dr,Chestnut Rd, Sumac Dr
	ManagerLocationNoticeAugust2312013.pdf
	Brunswick, Maine
	MEMORANDUM


	CA h Gas Main Layout Beech Dr, Chestnut Rd, Sumac Ln




